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As the condition of diversified competition in the bakery
industry and the increase in cost do not show signs of
alleviation, it is difficult to achieve breakthrough in revenue
bottleneck or control necessary expenses of the Company.
Christine International Holdings Limited (“the Company” or
“Christine”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”)
continued to implement the policy of closing down inefficient
stores in 2016. Although operating losses were reduced,
operation revenue was curbed. The Group's target for the next
stage is to focus on its main business and also to expand and
diversify its business.

The Group continued to reduce the number of stores in 2016.
Net closure of loss-making stores during the year reached 74.
Operating revenue was approximately RMB925,705,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of
12.81% as compared with the last year. Closure of stores led
to a reduction in the Group’s cost and expenses. In terms of
operating results, we recorded a decrease in loss of 18.30%
during the year ended 31 December 2016 compared with the
last year. Loss was approximately RMB121,210,000 in 2016.
Basic loss per share was approximately RMB12.0 cents in 2016.

In view of the fact that some of the pre-paid cards and
coupons sold by the Group in previous years are still
unredeemed, in order to arouse the attention of old customers,
and to increase operating income and reduce liabilities,
through encouragement of coupon holders to redeem their
pre-paid cards and coupons as soon as possible, coupled with
the decrease in amount of newly sold pre-paid cards, net cash
outflow from operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB31,261,000 in 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's cash and cash
equivalents (including refundable deposits made in accordance
with government regulations with regard to sales of pre-paid
cards) amounted to approximately RMB510,279,000. Current
ratio as at 31 December 2016 can still be maintained at a
level of 103.65%. Despite without financing from financial
institutions or private sectors, the Company could still maintain
its development and operations.
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Continual closure of stores that were unsuitable
for operation to minimize loss

We continued the policy of closure of stores since the second
half of 2014. All cost-ineffective stores recording frequent large
amount of losses, continual increases in expenses or at inferior
locations are closed according to the policy. During 2016, we
closed 74 stores. Although the closure of the stores resulted
in a reduction in operating income, it effectively controlled
operating expenses and reduced losses.

Fall in purchase during festivals and reduction in
sales of prepaid cards or coupons

Mid-Autumn Festival has always been the sales peak of
traditional moon cakes and gift coupons. With changes in
present-giving customs, changes in tastes of new generation
customers and diversification and substitution of gifts, sales of
festive gifts is not as popular as in the past. Sales amount of
pre-paid cards or coupons of mooncakes and bakery products
fell year by year. In addition, some cards or coupons sold in
early years have not been redeemed and this has hindered sales
of new cards or coupons. Although the Company has actively
encouraged redemption of old coupons during 2016, overall
sales of cards and coupons declined due to unsatisfactory
performance in the sale of new cards and coupons. This also
increased liquidity risks of operating cash.

Development of featured products and connection
with sales channels

Sales channels of bakery products are very diversified. Apart
from sales of different products in professional bakery stores
set up by the Group, convenience stores, supermarkets,
cafes, online e-commerce shops, hotel catering, etc., are
also mainstream sales channels. As a result of difference in
sales nature of various channels, demand for labour division
is different. We tried to cooperate with different channels to
develop customized products. We provide room temperature,
cold-chain finished or semi-finished products, and sell them
in contracted sales arrangements, in order to develop new
business models.
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Enhancement of turnover and capacity utilization rate is the
target of 2017. Our major ideas are as follows:

1. To adopt proposals to maximize staff’s incentives at
selected loss-making stores. Which aims to lead to a
win-win situation of an increase in income of the staff
of those stores and improvement in overall financial
results of the Company.

2. To establish specific departments responsible for
development of OEM or wholesales channel to gain
certain share in that industry, so as to create the effect
of simultaneous growth of factories’ capacity utilization
rate and the Company’s financial results.

3. To strengthen the function of e-commerce sales by
increasing online business partners in order to regain
lost market share in the online market.

4. To consider amortization of capacity cost and avoid
continual fall of turnover. The Group's policy of
closure of stores will gradually be replaced by the
transformation of stores, to create simultaneous
benefits of rebranding and maintaining the operation
scale.

Food safety is the greatest industry risk of the bakery industry.
The Group adheres to its commitment to ensure food safety.
In the coming year, apart from the above business plans,
the Group will also adhere to its original commitment with
regard to environmental, social responsibilities and corporate
governance. Apart from our goal to make profits, we also wish
to contribute to the environment, welfare of society and social
justice.
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In a year of no significant improvement in operating results,
transformation and development of new business encountered
twists and turn and took a long period of time. The Group
appreciates the tolerance of all shareholders who not only wait
patiently but also maintain confidence in shareholding when
we face bottlenecks in our operations. The Company's future
planning has entered the phase of implementation and loss
was reduced compared with last year. We wish all shareholders
can support us as usual.

To cope with our focus on promoting new business, besides
experienced staff who bear greater estimated goals, we also
recruited new staff in 2016. New staff are endowed with new
work missions and there is cooperation, labour division and
alternation between new and old staff. Through blending and
coordination, the Company’s culture is changed invisibly and
its competitiveness is also enhanced.

| sincerely express our gratitude to shareholders and our staff.
You are the new power of enterprise. Apart from appreciation,
the Group also promises to put more efforts and resources to
create win-win results to reward all of you who always support
our operation team.
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Operating Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s operating revenue for the years of
2016 and 2015 is set out as follows:

—E-REE —ZT-AEFE
2016 2015
ARBT T ARBFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
=L ON EEEF =ELUN HEEN
Gross Gross
Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenue Profit Revenue Profit
671,814 254,280 772,213 299,336
79,666 65,548 94,810 77,909
103,281 62,610 118,218 71,964
70,944 48,138 76,509 52,009
925,705 430,576 1,061,750 501,218

The Group's operating revenue was approximately
RMB925,705,000 in 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately 12.81% as compared with approximately
RMB1,061,750,000 in 2015. The decrease in revenue was
mainly attributable to the continual closure of 74 loss-making
stores in 2016. The total number of stores fell from 760 at the
end of 2015 to 686 at the end of 2016, due to the closure of
loss-making stores. Competition in the bakery industry was still
keen but market consumption continued to rise slowly. The
growth rate of overall same-store sales has slightly decreased
by -1.8%.

In terms of geographical locations, sales revenue from the
Group's retail outlets in Shanghai accounted for approximately
58.96% of the Group’s revenue for 2016, which slightly
decreased from 59.99% in 2015. The main source of the
Group’s revenue was still from the Shanghai market. Since
we adopted a business model of selling food delivered from
factories in traditional retail outlets, we were less competitive as
other brands which sold freshly baked products in urban areas.
As such, we continued our strategy in the previous year and
reduced the number of retail outlets. For more information on

ZE—NFFER Annual Report 2016 TFI#45T BEIFR =R AR 2 7 Christine International Holdings Limited
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our strategy, please refer to the section headed “Research and
Development Prospects” in this annual report. During the year,
we recorded a closure of 51 stores in Shanghai, representing
68.92% of the net decrease in the number of retail outlets
during the year. Operating revenue in this area for 2016
decreased by approximately RMB91,199,000 or approximately
14.32% as compared with 2015. We also recorded a decrease
in operating revenue in Jiangsu and Zhejiang provinces
of approximately RMB22,548,000 and RMB22,297,000,
respectively, or 8.31% and 14.53%, respectively, as compared
with 2015.

Following the closure of 74 retail stores, revenue from our
main products in 2016, namely bread and cakes, decreased
by approximately RMB100,399,000 or 13% as compared with
2015. In addition, both pastries and others were also affected
with sales volume decreased by approximately RMB 14,937,000
and RMB5,565,000, or approximately 12.64% and 7.27 %,
respectively. The Group’s revenue from moon cakes was also
affected and decreased by approximately RMB15,144,000 or
approximately 15.97% as compared with 2015.

In terms of payment methods, the Company’s revenue in
retail stores was settled either in cash (and bank cards) sales
or through redemption of coupons (and pre-paid cards). In
2016, revenue settled by cash (and bank cards) amounted to
approximately RMB515,573,000, accounting for 55.70% of
the total revenue, representing a decrease of approximately
17.81% as compared with RMB627,284,000 in 2015. Sales
revenue through sales of coupons (and pre-paid cards) slowed
down and amounted to approximately RMB410,132,000
in 2016, accounting for 44.30% of the total revenue,
representing a decrease of approximately 5.60% as compared
with RMB434,466,000 in 2015.

Gross Operating Profit

The Company’s gross operating profit was approximately
RMB430,576,000 in 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.09% as compared with RMB501,218,000
in 2015, attributable to a decrease in production capacity
utilization rate caused by a decrease in sales volume and
higher fixed cost amortization. Gross profit margin for the year
2016 was approximately 46.51%, which slightly decreased as
compared with 47.21% in 2015.

TRIHSTBIER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;X F % Annual Report 2016
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Other Income

Other income of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB912,000 from approximately RMB13,776,000 in 2015 to
approximately RMB12,864,000 in 2016, primarily attributable
to a decrease in interest income of approximately RMB754,000
caused by a decrease in bank balances and cash for the year.

Other Gains and Losses

The Group recorded other losses of approximately
RMB21,609,000 in 2016, representing a decrease in loss
of approximately RMB11,711,000 as compared with net
other losses of approximately RMB33,320,000 in 2015. It
was mainly due to a decrease in provision for impairment of
assets of approximately RMB30,609,000 in 2016 as compared
with 2015, which was partially offset by the decrease in gain
on expired unredeemed prepaid coupons of approximately
RMB15,159,000 as compared with 2015 due to acceleration in
redemption in the current year.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Affected by the Group’s strategic closure of certain loss-
making stores, selling expenses decreased by approximately
RMB77,579,000 from approximately RMB541,671,000 in 2015
to approximately RMB464,092,000 in 2016. Despite the effect
of the ongoing increase in the minimum labour wage imposed
by the local government and the influence from social welfare
and security system on salary cost, annual salary expenses
still decreased by approximately RMB31,194,000 because
of the closure of loss-making stores. Rental expenses, utility
expenses, amortization of repair expenses and depreciation
expenses relating to retail stores decreased by approximately
RMB26,359,000, RMB4,046,000, RMB3,999,000 and
RMB1,943,000, respectively. Expenses for paper boxes and
bags as well as transportation decreased by approximately
RMB3,923,000 and RMB2,672,000, as sales of all types of
products reduced with the cutdown on stores.
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Administrative Expenses

Continuing with the cost reduction policy from last year,
administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMB8,474,000 from approximately RMB84,718,000 in 2015
to approximately RMB76,244,000 in 2016. This was mainly
due to the fact that store design expenses in 2015 were higher
than 2016 by approximately RMB4,586,000, and depreciation
expenses and repair expenses relating to the back office also
decreased by approximately RMB1,158,000 and approximately
RMB1,370,000 in 2016.

Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased by approximately RMB957,000
from approximately RMB1,718,000 in 2015 to approximately
RMB761,000 in 2016.

Share of Profit of an Associate

Share of profit of an associate was approximately RMB467,000
in 2016, which was generated by profit from investment. It
represented a slight increase of approximately RMB85,000
as compared with the share of profit of approximately
RMB382,000 in 2015.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased by approximately RMB111,000
from approximately RMB2,300,000 in 2015 to approximately
RMB2,411,000 in 2016 which was at a similar level as the
previous year.

Loss and Total Comprehensive Expense for the
Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

Net losses decreased by approximately RMB27,141,000 from
approximately RMB148,351,000 in 2015 to approximately
RMB121,210,000 in 2016. Net profit margin slightly improved
from =13.97% in 2015 t0 -13.09% in 2016.
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Inventory Turnover Days

The following table sets forth the inventory turnover days for
2016 and 2015:

BE+-—HA=1+—-HLEFE
For the years ended
31 December
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2016 2015

FEREXH (M) Inventory turnover days (Note) 21 20
MizE . TERSXBNRFEYRAKREH EMTTHER LA BSEZ Note:  Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic mean of

HERA - BRA3ESRATHSH °
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the opening and closing balance of inventories divided by cost of sales
for the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

The Company’s inventories consist of raw materials and
finished goods. Inventory turnover days were the same for
2016 and 2015. The inventory levels were similar.

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The following table sets forth the trade receivables turnover
days for 2016 and 2015:

BZE+-A=+—HLFE
For the years ended
31 December

—B-AE —T—hF

2016 2015

B S REWGRIERE RS (W) Trade receivables turnover days (Note) 6 6
e : EBZRWFAEERHTVIRE ZREWFBERY N ERES 2 ZiFY Note: Trade receivables turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic

ERABREHRZHERA - BRU36SREESG -

BHRWFATIZRRATEEBRAESL - BAMAKE R
B EBERB T NFE_ZE-AFERFTE -

mean of the opening and closing balance of trade receivables divided by
the sales revenue for the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

Trade receivables are mainly for revenue generated from
principal businesses and outstanding receivables, with turnover
days remaining the same for both 2016 and 2015.
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BREe Age

0~30K 0 to 30 days
31~60K 31 to 60 days
61~90K 61 to 90 days
91~180K 91 to 180 days
B 180K Over 180 days

ARARHETERURESATL RIS - EAKEEIFIE
FHE  WEMREY  BERBENBERRRESHES
JE - RS HETBERKRA QR EIR - R30~60K
BXNARE -

ZRIBITER

HRBITERARERSS - E—=FF N HERRTE
MREEATIVEANRE  BARITZRES - —T— A FiR
HEBNTARERBEMERERITOEBRESHARE
52,390,0007T * E=F—RFELHARMES1,700,0007T 4B+

rgh

=' o

IHHETHERE

AARRZZE—RFNAAAEAARK35,000,0000E %

Age of Trade Receivables

The following table is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
the Group as at the dates indicated:

R+=—HA=+—H

As of 31 December
ZE-RF —T—hF
2016 2015
AR®T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
10,695 12,338
210 348
396 381
1,250 3,205
51 506
12,602 16,778

The Company’s sales were mainly settled either in cash or
through redemption of coupons by customers. There was
no credit payment for transactions which took place in the
Group's self-operated retail stores. However, for those retail
stores located in department stores or supermarkets, lessors
who provided those sites usually collected the sales revenue on
the Company’s behalf and settled such amounts within 30 to
60 days thereafter.

Restricted Bank Deposits

The restricted bank deposits were the collateral deposited
with banks pursuant to the regulation of pre-paid cards
management pilot scheme for bank reconciliation under
Provision No. 9 by Ministry of Commerce in 2013. The relevant
collateral deposited with banks according to the provision
for the balance of the pre-paid cards sold for 2016 was
approximately RMB52,390,000, which was approximate to
that of approximately RMB51,700,000 for 2015.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

The Company purchased managed investment fund of
RMB35,000,000 on 5 June 2015.
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Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Except for the aforesaid investment, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31
December 2016.

Trade Payables Turnover Days

The following table sets forth the trade payables turnover days
for 2016 and 2015:

BE+-A=+—BHLFE
For the years ended
31 December

TE—RE —ET—hHF
2016 2015
B 5N aEE X E (M) Trade payables turnover days (Note) 40 39

fiE .  ESENFURBEREIRAMERGROE S RN FORGMROEMN
FER AR BB EERA - BRA3SRAEGH -

B ZENREZRER

BREe Age

0~45K 0 to 45 days
46~60K 46 to 60 days
61~90K 61 to 90 days
91~180K 91 to 180 days
HBiE180K Over 180 days

RRREHER A E 5 MR IR BT 245~60K - BN
HERENTE  BNHEREREMNK

Note: Trade payables turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic
mean of the opening and closing balance of trade payables divided by
the cost of sales for the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

Age of Trade Payables

R+=A=+—H

As of 31 December
—E-REF —T—RF
2016 2015
AR®TT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
48,083 50,504
4,028 5,033
119 352
21 -
932 535
53,183 56,424

The Company'’s credit terms for trade payables due to suppliers
generally range from 45 to 60 days. Other payables include
wage payables, tax payables and sundry payables.
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HE-_Z—ANFT+_A=+—8 BeMETEIHARE
457,889,0007T * B — T —AFEARMKS517,990,0007T *
LH#AR¥60,101,000T © F B2ME SR RARTEHR R
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R#31,261,0007T : AABAELE  RETHELIRESFR
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FF107.85% &

BAFHREEEN  ARERE—T—R"F+_A=1+—HLt
FRRBERNWESS -

Deposits from Customers

Deposits from customers mainly include payments received
from customers for pre-paid cards and coupons. In 2016,
as sales amount of pre-paid cards and coupons reduced as
compared with 2015 and consumers were encouraged to
redeem pre-paid cards and coupons purchased in previous
years, therefore causing a decrease in the balance of
outstanding pre-paid cards and coupons by approximately
RMB30,497,000.

Financial Policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its financial policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position in order to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to
time. The Group will utilize the balance of cash for appropriate
investment to satisfy the cash requirements for supporting the
strategic development of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, cash and bank deposits amounted
to approximately RMB457,889,000, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB60,101,000 as compared
with RMB517,990,000 as at the end of 2015, which was
mainly attributable to the net cash outflow of approximately
RMB31,261,000 from operating activities during the year as a
result of the decrease in income under the effect of closure of
stores and decline in sales of pre-paid cards and coupons and
their accelerated redemption. Net cash outflow from investing
activities amounted to approximately RMB28,840,000 due
to addition of production assets. There was no net cash flow
incurred from financing activities.

The current ratio for 2016 was 103.65%, which was slightly
lower than that of 107.85% for 2015. However, this indicated
our satisfactory solvency and well-established financial
structure.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have any plan for material acquisitions for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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FEAE
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HAEHSEEHARE14,108,0007T °

BE-Z—RF+-A=+—R FEEBEREFNEE -

BEXRE

HE-Z—XE+_A=+—0  AEEHRESBEDTER
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As at the end of 2016 and 2015, the Group's gearing ratio,
calculated by dividing total liabilities by total assets, was
approximately 49.66% and 45.64%, respectively. The decrease
in sales of pre-paid cards and coupons and acceleration of
redemption during 2016 resulted in a decrease in cash balance
and increase in the gearing ratio.

Banking facilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had banking facilities of
RMB300,000,000.

Debentures

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had not issued any
debentures.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Payment Commitments

According to the lease contracts in relation to retail stores as
at 31 December 2016, the Group’s future non-cancellable
minimum lease payment amounted to approximately
RMB129,544,000, while capital expenditure in relation
to the acquisition of fixed assets such as property, plant
and equipment not included in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB14,108,000.

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Group's assets was
pledged.

Capital Structure

The Group maintained a rather healthy financial position
as at 31 December 2016 without any bank borrowings,
pledged assets and notes payable. Total equity amounted to
approximately RMB659,572,000 as at 31 December 2016,
representing a decrease of approximately 15.46% from
approximately RMB780,446,000 as at 31 December 2015. As
at 31 December 2016, the capital structure of the Company
comprised 1,010,188,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.00001 each
(the “Shares”).
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Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Exposure

As the Group conducts business transactions principally in
Renminbi, interest rate fluctuation in places where capital
was deposited was not high, and our offshore capital was
mainly deposited in foreign banks as offshore Renminbi,
the management considered the exchange rate and interest
rate risk at the Group's operational level not significant.
Accordingly, the Group had not used any financial instruments
for hedging purposes as at 31 December 2016.

Capital expenditures of the Group for the year of 2016 were as
follows:

1HA ARBFT
Items RMB’'000
tHEBIR R BE  IRREREE
Developing sales network Purchases, new fitting-out and repairs 11,821
Operation equipment 769
It
Sub-total 12,590
EEREIESR B
Expanding production capacity Plant 25,247
FERE
Production equipment 2,133
et
Sub-total 27,380
BYEBREATH B g
Capital expenditure for back office administration IT software 3,351
BEARX AT
Total capital expenditures 43,321

HEBBEATHBERNKEFEHRESK T2 RELEFIE
SN E  EEREAST HAEER I TR - &% network included the project of a total of 8 stores operated
ARETIREERRERES  BHEART L AEARHIEER by the Group during the year and the external and internal
i o maintenance of the existing stores. Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure arising from developing the sales

arising from the expansion of production capacity was mainly
attributed to the expenses for conducting civil engineering
projects in Jiangning facility and acquisition of machinery and
equipment of different plants. Capital expenditure for back
office administration was mainly related to the purchase of IT
software.
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Since certain loss-making stores were closed and the number
of sales personnel and corresponding back offices were
continually downsized in 2016, the Group’s total number of
employees decreased to 5,019 as at 31 December 2016 from
5,793 as at 31 December 2015, with the major staff being
sales staff in stores. Total annual payroll in 2016 amounted to
approximately RMB323,098,000. Although the amount of total
annual payroll was lower than that of 2015, it still accounted
for 34.90% of the operating revenue, and representing an
increase as compared with 33.51% in 2015, which was mainly
due to organization adjustment to strengthen sales function
and OEM business and recruitment of advanced talents.
In addition to fixed wages, our employees may be granted
departmental and personal allowances and year-end bonuses
subject to performance appraisal.

Currently, apart from carrying out store-closure plans and
downsizing the number of employees, the Group actively
rewards employees who meet performance targets. Besides
share option and bonus incentives, the Group also plans to
implement a system pursuant to which certain store managers
may share store profits depending on the stores’ performance,
with an aim to reduce costs.

Market Outlook

China’s bakery industry market continues to grow each year,
and it is expected that by 2020 national sales volume of bakery
products will reach RMB550 billion per year. The management
of the Company observed the following key industry trends in
recent years:

1. The overall bakery market continues to grow.

2. Consumption clusters spread from first and second tier
cities to third and fourth tier cities.

3. The age band of consumers continually widens.

4. Competition in similar product types, price and
distribution channel remains intense.
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5. Regionalization of individual brands is obvious. There
are no leading brands having absolute advantages in
the national market.

6. Market competitors adopt similar marketing strategies
and management techniques, rendering it difficult for
brands to stand out among competitors.

7. Individual brands encounter a bottleneck stage that
hinders their development.

Despite the above observations in the industry, the Company
still optimistically expects that in the foreseeable future, the
bakery market will achieve steady growth. In response to the
above, the Company has developed the following measures:

1. Reducing store-opening density in first and second tier
cities and starting to develop in third and fourth tier
cities in a moderate pace.

2. Strengthening customer relation management system
and online and offline services, and enhancing
customer services quality.

3. Utilizing existing scale of economy in the factories to
improve the production and sale of cakes, Cold Chain
Bakery Products (defined below) and Passage Products
(defined below), and overcoming past geographical
restrictions on sales.

4. Developing new products and enhancing production
technology so as to adapt to different business
environments and avoid competition in the low-cost
product segment.

Various expenses rose rapidly this year as a result of inflation
and increased in salary. We consider that by responding to
consumption dynamics flexibly, we could improve our business
results.
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To improve operating revenue and capacity utilization, we
will focus our marketing efforts on cakes, Cold Chain Bakery
Products and Passage Products in the coming year. Our
research and development (“R&D") direction will also be
adjusted accordingly.

. R&D in Cakes

Cakes are products with a high gross profit margin
but are also products of intense competition in the
bakery retail segment. Apart from being a necessary
product for sales in traditional bakery stores, sales in
coffee shops and online stores are also mainstream
channels for cakes sales. Utilizing scale of production in
our factories and simultaneously enhancing taste and
appearance of our products to be competitive both in
taste and cost, is our R&D direction regarding cakes
products this year.

o R&D in Cold Chain Bakery Products

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company
has developed 34 types of cold chain bakery products
("Cold Chain Bakery Products”), which are products
that will be slightly baked right before sale to enhance
their taste. They are also suitable for household
consumption after baking, and sale in business
premises after slight heating. Besides, we aim to
further refine the Cold Chain Bakery Products currently
used by the business premises in the future to replace
the existing pre-packaged products produced in the
factories. As the Cold Chain Bakery Products will be
slightly baked right before sale, they will be of better
temperature and taste, which would stimulate our sales
and help to reduce returns of our products.
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R&D in Passage Products

Following development of our OEM business in 2016,
we expected that even greater production capacity
will be allocated to our products sold at non-self-
operated channels such as big outlets, supermarkets,
convenience stores, coffee shops, hotels and medium
and small bakery shops (the “Passage Products”),
which is in line with our development directions. As a
result of the varying demands of consumers from the
aforesaid different channels, and in consideration of
differences in products’ expiry dates, taste, packaging
and price, more resources will be allocated to the R&D
of Passage Products starting from this year.

No important event after the period affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year.
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Mr. Tien-An Lo, aged 63, was appointed as a director of
the Company (a “Director”) in March 2008 and then as an
executive Director and the Chairman in December 2011. He
is the founder of the Group and has been responsible for the
overall strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr.
Lo has extensive experience in the bakery and retail industries,
having been engaged in the bakery and retail businesses for
over 23 years. In addition, he has extensive experience in
corporate management including drafting overall guidelines,
conducting systemic management, and drawing up strategic
plans. Mr. Lo is currently a director of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Lo has served as a director of Sino Century
Universal Corporation, a substantial shareholder (as defined
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company since
2008. Mr. Lo has also served as the chairman of the board
of directors of Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd. since
1999. He has served as the vice president of the Association
of Taiwanese Businessmen of Shanghai since December 2009.
Mr. Lo has been the key driver of the Group's strategies and
achievements to date. Mr. Lo graduated from Tian Li County
Zhong Xing High Commercial Technical Private School in 1981.
In 2007, Mr. Lo was named as an Entrepreneur of the Year by
financial publication Forbes China. Since 28 February 2013, Mr.
Lo has taken up the duties of the chief executive officer of the
Company.

For details of Mr. Lo's interest in the Shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2016, please refer to page 38 of this annual
report.
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Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu, aged 68, was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 June 2016. He graduated from Chienkuo
Commercial Junior College (currently known as Chienkuo
Technology University) in 1970 in Taiwan. In 1980, he founded
Hongjie Foodstuff Ingredients Company* (B & @R AQ
7)) in Taipei City, Taiwan, which sold baking ingredients. In
1991, he co-founded Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Co. Ltd.*
(BEZFH4 TR MAR AR a member of the Group. In 1993,
he founded and has served as Chairman of Shanghai Hongda
Packaging and Decorations Co., Ltd* (=i 8E 4R AR
A7) (“Shanghai Hongda”), a company which sells baking
ingredients.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Hsu is interested in
11,325,832 Shares which are held by Hong Ray Holdings Ltd,
a company wholly-owned by him. For further details of Mr.
Hsu’s interest in the Shares of the Company as at 31 December
2016, please refer to page 38 of this annual report.

Mr. Ming-Tien Lin, aged 60, was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 June 2016. In 1989, he founded Jonsa
Technologies Co. Ltd.* (R&EEHERMHBRAF]), primarily
engaged in manufacturing satellite antennae, and remains as the
chairman to date. In 1993, he founded and invested in Zhongwei
Industry (Nanjing) Co., Ltd* (R 71 & 2 (R ) B R A R), primarily
engaged in the manufacture of wire telephones and telegraph
equipment, and remains as the chairman to date. In 1993, he
co-founded the Nanjing Taiwan Business Association* (F =M
B E) and served as the vice-chairman until 2010. Since
then, he retired from the association but preserves his title as
a founder. From 2000 onwards, Mr. Lin developed Nanjing
Gingko Lake* (F3 5 SR A58 L) and invested in Nanjing Gingko
Lake Agriculture and Tourism Company* (588 4340 2 S 815
KREIBEPRAT), of which he serves as the chairman to date.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. Chi-Ming Chou, aged 65, was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2011 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 23 December 2015. Mr.
Chou joined the Group in 1993. Mr. Chou has more than 23
years of experience in the bakery industry in the PRC. Mr. Chou
is currently a director of two members of the Group, namely
Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Ji Yuan
De Foodstuff Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chou has served as a director of
Sino Century Universal Corporation, a substantial shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company since
2008. Mr. Chou has served as a director of Ban Wu Food Co.,
Ltd., a company incorporated in Taiwan that produces and
sells bakery products only in Taiwan, since 1996, and served
as a director of Chao Bi Food Enterprise Co., Ltd., a company
engaged in bakery business, from 2003 to 2006. In addition,
since 2011, Mr. Chou has served as a director of Shanghai
Jia Guo Packaging Co., Ltd., a company mainly engaged in
manufacture and sale of packaging materials in Shanghai,
and since 1997, he has served as a director of San Jiu Xing
Co., Ltd., a company mainly engaged in manufacture and sale
of packaging materials in Taiwan. Mr. Chou has served as a
management committee member of the Tainan City Bakery
Association since 2007.

For details of Mr. Chou'’s interest in the Shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2016, please refer to page 38 of this annual
report.
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Mr. Haiming Gao, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in December 2014. He was a senior
assistant to the three offices of the chief engineer, chief
accountant and chief economist (= 2 B (42 T 12 - 24 &
5T B K2 4245 7 B i X = = AR B) 32 ) in Shanghai Chemical
Industry Park Development Co., Ltd.* (& /&b £ T % [& %
B A R A 7)), a real estate development company, during the
period from 2008 to September 2016. He was a manager of
the financial department, a vice chief accountant (g 42 & &t
ff) and a board secretary of Shanghai Wai Gaogiao Free Trade
Zone Development Co. Ltd* (£ /8 4h & B R # [& 2 I
7 A BR A 7)) (a real estate development company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock codes: A shares: 600648;
B shares: 900912)) between 1991 and 2002. He served as a
director and general manager in Sungolden Limited (A & & 5
A R A 7)), a subsidiary of Shanghai Wai Gaogiao Free Trade
Zone Development Co. Ltd, mainly responsible for trading and
investment, between 2000 and 2002 and in Shanghai Chemical
Industry Park Property Co., Ltd.* (- /Bt 2 T ¥R E %A
B2 A &), a company principally engaged in leasing and sale of
properties, between 2002 and 2008. Mr. Gao graduated from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics ( /& Bf & K
&) in December 1987 majoring in accounting. He obtained
a master degree of business administration from University of
South Australia in May 2002. Mr. Gao is a senior accountant
recognized by Shanghai Accounting Senior Professional and
Technical Title Qualification Evaluating Committee* (£ /& T
BRI REXERMBBETIBRERTIEEZESR) N
October 1994 and he has been a non-practicing member of
Shanghai Institute of Certified Public Accountants (- /& T 5+
i & &t &l % &) since 1997.

Mr. Nianlin Zhu, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in December 2011. Mr. Zhu is currently
the president of China Association of Bakery & Confectionery
Industry, a deputy secretary of China National Light Industry
Council, a director of the Economic Cooperation Department
of China National Light Industry Council, a deputy secretary
of the State Food and Nutrition Consultant Committee, a
director of Educational Steering Committee under the Ministry
of Education’s National Committee of Vocational Education in
Food Industry. Mr. Zhu received his Bachelor Degree in food
engineering from Wuxi Light Industry Institute in 1982. Mr. Zhu
received his Master of Business Administration from Tsinghua
University in 2001.

*  For identification purposes only

TRIHSTBIER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;X F % Annual Report 2016



BeEXZt 2K R-T——F+_-_AEZERBIIFY
TEE - HUTHRAZLBEARREBREHRARIEHE - X
WERTERBEZNMAS2ERA T - HLERELZSSEM -
18 A S BTN T 22 B e & B X AL BEAED © RN R KE A
B AERENRAARBREFEADN - B —TT\FE_F
TNF  HUTREIEILBEEASHREIEH LB Bl

BRIRRBEFTRFRLARE  UNR TS FE T FIE
fEStop and Shop PharmacyZEEIEPAEIR - 14 &8 MIERAEE
BERANLR - BHATHR— AN\ FREEERIAZ S
BBy i ZF TN F SN LR 2B 2T - TR
—EERFE DT HFHMAE SRS AEM BGREL
Bl EE ke RIEEAREIRE o

BEmEE - 4958 BZERARRMGEIRE - BEER
T —FMAREE c BEREB-ANREE-ANNEF
LERIEEEX G EBAETSBSRZHRE - B - BE
EE-NNN\FEZTTNFETHSEFRNDBRARME
RITEBBEERENHEELE YA -TT/\FE_F
ENFREERNEERODARQIBDIFEEFNE - BEER
“ANAFESHERBEAFBBLEN - 1o BEREDR]
R=NANANFR-_FTT/\FEGERFBERERSESSR
ERPEBERBAERFREGHEEANERAZASER
BIEREBEXHEEE -

Ms. Wanwen Su, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in December 2011. Ms. Su is currently
a clinical assistant professor in School of Pharmacy, Taipei
Medical University, and Advisor of pharmaceutical care
committee, Taiwan Pharmacist Association. She is a registered
pharmacist in Massachusetts, USA and a certified pharmacist in
Taiwan as well. She is also a certified holistic health counselor
certified by the American Association of Drugless Practitioners
in USA. She served as a researcher of Clinical Research Center
of Excellence for Clinical Trial and Research, Taipei Medical
University Wan-Fang Hospital, from 2008 to 2009 and a
pharmacy manager in Stop and Shop Pharmacy, from 2000 to
2006. She has a deep understanding of nutrition and healthy
living. Ms. Su obtained her Bachelor of Science in pharmacy
from Northeastern University in 1998 and her Doctor of
Pharmacy degree from Massachusetts College of Pharmacy and
Health Sciences in 2004 and took professional and advanced
health counseling training programs in Institute for Integrative
Nutrition affiliated with Columbia University from 2005 to
2007.

Mr. Weilun Liao, aged 49, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of finance and accounting. Mr. Liao joined the
Group in 2011. Mr. Liao served as a senior auditor of Audit
Department of KPMG Taiwan from 1996 to 1998; following
that, Mr. Liao served as a project manager of the Corporate
Finance Department, Corporate Banking Division of the Capital
Securities Corporation from 1998 to 2004. From 2008 to
2009, he served as a special assistant to the chairman of Long
Chen Paper Co., Ltd.. Mr. Liao obtained his Bachelor Degree
in accounting in Fu Jen University in 1995. In addition, Mr.
Liao obtained his qualifications as a Senior Securities Specialist
from Taiwan Securities Association and a Securities Investment
Trust and Consulting Professional from Securities Investment
Trust & Consulting Association of Taiwan, in 1999 and 2008,
respectively.
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Ms. Yuping Jiang, aged 46, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She oversees the
Company's overall operations in Nanjing, including overall sales
management, corporate rules formulation and enforcement,
appointment of the senior management. Ms. Jiang has gained
14 years of experience in factory management, retail outlet
management and expansion. She joined the Group in 2002. Ms.
Jiang oversees the expansion of the Company’s Nanjing retail
network, from one retail outlet to the current 80 retail outlets.
Before joining the Group, Ms. Jiang served as the manager
and deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xinxi Hotel from 1996
to 2002. Ms. Jiang has extensive experience in finance and
human resources management. In 2007, Ms. Jiang was elected
as a deputy to the People’s Congress of Baixia District, Nanjing.
Ms. Jiang received her Bachelor Degree in food industry and
science from Wuxi Institute of Light Industry in 1994.

Ms. Liping Huang, aged 49, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She is mainly
responsible for sales and management matters in Zhejiang,
Wuxi and Suzhou. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Huang
has approximately 15 years of experience in marketing and
procurement. Before joining the Group, she worked in
Shanghai Kangcheng Storage Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2002 and
in Shihu Storage (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from 2004 to 2005. Ms.
Huang graduated from Fuzhou University in 1989.

wRISTBIFRER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;S 4%} Annual Report 2016



EEMAREARAZFRERAEEARBE—FT—RF+=
A=+ R LEFENEEZGRAMBRE

ARRAR-ZEZNF=ZA+—BEHSEEFMAIZEH
RBERAF -MZE——F-_A=-+=B(LHEH])  F8
LR EEFR.60/ T ¥R 2250,000,00088 8815 + AL 13 A
NFEREBBERSBRAR (MR EE - Hik -
IHEARRRR LT B E R ARRE M R BERRE
RN EEBINETT10,188,00008 Je 17 ©

ARRMEBEBRITREZER - AARTEMBRRNERE
BRBHRRGEEMBEMRMEIS - RER  AERETZEK
MEEYERZE AEERBE—T—R"F+_A=1—
AR EMER RN BENERE M RAME3S -

EHAREFRNESNTEERIRATRESEZSEMNE/F
BE RFIOENENEEBNBRENITIEZEMNR - MERA
LB R REE N ER LT RERAR E MM - RER A FRES
Z8EM[ EFEBE IZHN  FAMBHRERMEICETEH TR
EENPTHEBEE B IZREER - RAPRFERER  TE
BHEHAEBAYENEAREEIE - AFRF17288FIH
VEHE U BERRRIBIEZOMASEFTRER o o -
R AEBIRIRBUR - BENEBRERREAEBEEERTEN
FERLE R RO Z B FIER - WEHNAFRESAZ74EM[
EER|ME IZEHN - YRAREBHETEENRKERNBE
R HRAARERE19E20E M RKEL ] -

The Directors are pleased to present the Company’s annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 11 March 2008. On
23 February 2012 (the “Listing Date"), the Shares successfully
commenced dealing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by initially offering
250,000,000 Shares at the offer price of HK$1.60 per Share.
The Company subsequently issued 10,188,000 additional
Shares pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option
granted by the Company in connection with the initial public
offering on the Listing Date.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year is
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 8 and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections on pages 9
to 22 of this annual report. Description of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement section on pages 5 to 8. Also,
the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. No important event after the period affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
Summary on page 172 of this annual report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships
with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are all contained in the Corporate Governance Report section
on pages 54 to 74. The probable future business development
of the Company is discussed in the paragraph headed “Future
Prospects” from pages 19 to 20 of this annual report.
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The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
its financial position as at 31 December 2016 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 89.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for 2016.

The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares
at the time of its listing on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date and pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option on 16 March 2012 amounted to HK$356,800,000.
Such net proceeds are intended to be or have been applied
in accordance with the proposed applications as set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 10 February 2012. The use
of proceeds can be summarized as follows:

REB—XREF

+=A=+—~H

At 31 December 2016

BT

HK$

HR T ZEM L Opening new retail outlets 146,288,000

EEREETR Expanding production capacity 142,662,000
LR MEE BRI RSB R ER Addition and improvement of the information technology

systems and the R&D of new products 20,755,000

—MEEE® General operating working capital 35,680,000

#Et Total 345,385,000

RIE—RNE+ A=+ BADANFEBRELELN A
11,415,000/ 7T + FTSIEFRE FIERAR BT ITENNRES
K35 R ©

As at 31 December 2016, the balance of unutilized proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$11,415,000 and the net
proceeds are temporarily placed in short term deposits with
licensed institutions in Hong Kong.
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A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 172 of this annual report.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group retained a healthy financial position as at 31
December 2016 without any bank borrowings, pledged assets
and notes payable.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws
of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity contained herein.
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The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent
the share premium, reserves and profit which in aggregate
amounted to approximately RMB303,413,000 as at 31
December 2016. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company’s memorandum and the Articles
and provided that immediately following the date on which
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. In accordance with the Articles, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realized
or unrealized or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of the share premium account of the Company.

During the year, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
27.63% of the Group’s total purchases. The Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for 38.93% of the Group’s total
purchases.

During the year, no single customer accounted for over 10%
of the Group's total sales.

Among our five largest suppliers, Shanghai Yi Pin Xuan
Foodstuff Co., Ltd. (E/8—REFRMBAERAF]) (“Yi Pin Xuan”)
is our connected party. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are set out in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below.
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Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of
their associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest suppliers.

During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tien-An Lo (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu (appointed on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Ming-Tien Lin (@ppointed on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Dun-Ching Hung (removed on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Yu Lin (removed on 3 June 2016)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Haiming Gao
Mr. Nianlin Zhu
Ms. Wanwen Su

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all the independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 23 to 28 of this Annual Report.

Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu and Mr. Ming-Tien Lin have entered into a
service contract with the Company for a fixed term of 3 years
starting from 3 June 2016. Mr. Chi-Ming Chou has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of 3
years starting from 23 February 2015. A supplemental service
contract has been entered into between Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
and the Company with respect to the re-designation from an
executive Director to a non-executive Director with effect from
23 December 2015. Except for the aforesaid re-designation,
all material terms of the service contract remain unchanged.
Mr. Haiming Gao has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a fixed term of 3 years starting from 29
December 2014. Apart from Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu, Mr. Ming-Tien
Lin, Mr. Chi-Ming Chou and Mr. Haiming Gao, each of the
executive Directors and each of the other independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of 3 years starting from 23 February
2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year and as
at 31 December 2016.
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Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance to
the business of the Group which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the
year and as at 31 December 2016.

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group.

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which such Director shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of his duty in his office.

None of the Directors shall be answerable for the acts, receipts,
neglects or defaults of the other or for joining in any receipts
for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons
with whom any moneys or effects belonging to the Company
shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out
on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage
which may happen in the execution of his office, or in relation
thereto; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.
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Each Shareholder agrees to waive any claim or right of action
he might have, whether individually or by or in the right of
the Company, against any Director on account of any action
taken by such Director, or the failure of such Director to take
any action in the performance of his duties with or for the
Company; provided that such waiver shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.

Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which the
Articles may provide for indemnification of officers and
directors, except to the extent any such provision may be held
by the court to be contrary to public policy (e.g. for purporting
to provide indemnification against the consequences of
committing a crime).

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

The change in the information of directors since the date of
the Company’s 2016 interim report is set out below:

1) Mr. Haiming Gao was retired from Shanghai Chemical
Industry Park Development Co., Ltd.* ( Fif{rET % &
EREAR A T) in September 2016.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of other
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B (1) of the Listing Rules.
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ABHERN - ZREEE  AEBEBERE B TIEERE
TR ZBREBOANERIIFES -

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorization of the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting each year. The
remuneration of the executive Directors is subject to review
by the Remuneration Committee, and their remuneration is
determined with reference to the Directors’ qualifications,
experience, duties, responsibilities and performance and
results of the Group. As for the independent non-executive
Directors, remuneration is determined by the Board, upon
recommendation from the Remuneration Committee. Details
of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group had a total of 5,019 employees as at 31 December
2016, with the majority being sales staff in stores. Total
annual payroll amounted to approximately RMB323,098,000,
accounting for 34.90% of the operating revenue and
representing an increase of 1.39% as compared with 2015. In
addition to fixed wages, our employees may be granted other
allowances and a year-end bonus subject to a performance
appraisal. Currently, the Group carries out the store-closure
plans and staff downsizing, leading to job rotation, multi-skills
training and legal severance for related staff. At this stage,
training and control of labour costs are the key focus of our
human resources work.
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REZE=RF+-A=+—0  RARAAEFAZSTHRAER
ARABSEEAREEE (ERLERRPEGERD (R R
BB DFEXVER) ZBfn - HRARGD RESFTEREREESZ K
HIEROIEXVERET R ED BMERME AR B R Rz
B lokR (BREEREES RPE R 2 ZF R REE
HERFEAZEBRIRE) » HALALRRAREBEESFRPE
GROIF3S2IRARE 2 B2 AR - RE EHARA
fiEx10PTEl . EMBEITABRTETES RS ZIRETR (TR
BEFR ) AMNERNAT LB EESORBIT

B2
BRETHASES B HEEtE

Name of Directors/ Capacity/nature

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1ERDF
ERITREBD
Percentage

of the Company'’s

EBEREE A

Number of

chief executive of interest ordinary Shares  Position issued share capital

BAZKED SEHLEE R 184,212,244  t4#& 18.24%

Mr. Tien-An Lo® Interest in a controlled corporation Long

SRALER REEHhEEER 25,320,365 A 2.51%

Mr. Chi-Ming Chou® Interest in a controlled corporation Long

FFRARIEAE® R EhEEE R 11,325,832 & 1.12%

Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu® Interest in a controlled corporation Long

B & Notes:

(1 179,762,244 R EF (AR A B FNITE ) AR %K £ FBSno 1) 179,762,244 Shares are held by Mr. Tien-An Lo, who is concurrently a
Century Universal Corporation (['Sino Century |)#3#7% © Sino Century B4 Goyen Director and CEO, through Sino Century Universal Corporation (“Sino
Investments Ltd(F3Sino CenturyE FEH R L ELEHAF ) HEH 100%H# Century”). Sino Century is owned as to 100% by Goyen Investments
@ o 1M4,450,0000% A& 5 B 4 H % 5t 4 % B Goyen Investments Ltd#F 4 © Ltd, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Tien-An Lo who is a director of Sino

Century. And 4,450,000 Shares are held by Mr. Tien-An Lo through
Goyen Investments Ltd.

) % E W) B SR St 4B B Masco International Corporationt# © ) These Shares are held by Mr. Chi-Ming Chou, who is a Director, through
Masco International Corporationfl ERIBRSC A2 EHE © Masco International Corporation. Masco International Corporation is

wholly-owned by Mr. Chi-Ming Chou.

(3) ZERD B E ERTEFAR L £ B BHong Ray Holdings Ltd#%7%5 © Hong Ray (3) These Shares are held by Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu, who is a Director, through

Holdings LtdB 7P BAREE R ERA ©

Hong Ray Holdings Ltd. Hong Ray Holdings Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr.
Hung-Sen Hsu.
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BEXFEBEEN R_F—AR"F+_A=1+—8 BELRQ
AEFEIERTRABRANR AR EMEEER(EERE
FMEBEGOIEXVER) 2B - HERD REFTHRAERER
R EGHIEXVEIETREID R ERME RN A) KR
Az Em IR R (BRREREE S LB R Z ZF 60
BEEIRRAB ZEEZIAR)  HBRARRAREESK
HERPIEISEERBE 2 ETM2RRIAR - HRBHRLE
SRABREARR MR T R IORR -

BARREELARSTRABRMM R-_FT—R"F+-A
=t+—8  REOHABEROFHEEREES LB RHIS
XVEFSE2 R FINMREBAARBRE 2 R E » HAE
AR RRIRIEE 7 KB IRHIE336IRERE 2 B LM 2
BIRBZBER(RARBEETHRZRHITRABRINGT :

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had, as at 31 December 2016, any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2016, Shareholders (other
than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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FERRRRO2EFR

Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the
Shares

LERNE
BRREH B, HEHME ZEREE B ERTREAES
Percentage
Capacity/nature Number of of the Company’s
Name of shareholders of interest ordinary Shares  Position issued share capital
Sino Century® E=mEA A 179,762,244 415 17.79%
Beneficial owner Long
Goyen Investments Ltd.(0® RIEHEEE R 179,762,244 i1 & 17.79%0
Interest in a controlled corporation Long
EnlEaA 4,450,0002 4F& 0.44%
Beneficial owner Long
Sparkling Light Corporation® E=mEA A 66,921,303® 4f& 6.62%%
Beneficial owner Long
B S RiEflEEE R 66,921,303® #f& 6.62%
Mr. Dun-Ching Hung® Interest in a controlled corporation Long
Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd. Z5EA 75,000,000 & 7.42%
(“Christine Princess”)® Trustee Long
Add Fortune Ventures Limited® EnEAA 121,500,000 & 12.03%
Beneficial owner Long
MG A RiEflEEE R 121,500,000 & 12.03%
Mr. Yu Lin® Interest in a controlled corporation Long
A ES SVEHEE R 121,500,000 & 12.03%
Mr. Minren Fang® Interest in a controlled corporation Long
Fff5E Notes:
(1) Sino Century B4 Goyen Investments Ltd # %& 100% # z ° Goyen (1) Sino Century is owned as to 100% by Goyen Investments Ltd. Goyen
Investments LtdiH B Ze A2 E A © Investments Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Tien-An Lo.
(2) Goyen Investments LtdFAZE AL £ 2 EHE © (2) Goyen Investments Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Tien-An Lo.
(3) Sparkling Light Corporation B A& S £ 2 E A - (3) Sparkling Light Corporation is wholly-owned by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung.
(4) Christine Princess/%— RN EBERE LB S ML ZEFEAR - EUE (4) Christine Princess is a trust company incorporated in the British Virgin
AEAREEEREFERARRE - Islands, which holds its equity interest in the Company on trust for the
benefit of management employees.
(5) Add Fortune Ventures Limited B3 55 4 K 75 A e £ 5 BI#E B 50.5% (5) Add Fortune Ventures Limited is owned as to 50.5% and 49.5% by Mr.

49 5% o

B EXAEBEEN R_F—RE+A=1+—8 ARFHM
BEETMAL(RRAREFARTHRABRINAE - BIRA
A RIAD SARRE R P A IRIRE S R B R G BXVERE2 &
FINEWREBAARRRE 2B IAR * RALALRAR
RIBE S LB RPIFEIB6HRARE 2 B M ERIORE -

Yu Lin and Mr. Minren Fang respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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AR D SR ET Bl R BB AR ST Bl (T (5t @l ) -
Christine Princessi FTIF AR R RBE RN EETFEICEE
IRREE o KRR EHETBIBITHR - FTSRARBNNE
HFROEMERE - A2 E EmRRE17E 2 RER
C BRZERE c EERARG REREREORENER

» — 2 % B Christine Princess
HEZ4

H AR AR BRSO B BRRELTYE - FRITED

RAFHRZ G EMBEREMEIIARE - st ERBER
RARB AR T ——F - A+ HOBREREMEID.H

HEE | —Ef o

HE-T
TR

—RNETZA=1T—R - SRERD REE BRI

EBEAER

Name of grantee
RFEED

Xiuping Zhu®
RUE@

Qiuyi Yu®

Yuping Jiang

GEE

(1) ABEFLLCN_F-=ZF AT N\BENK UTRAABBERER
RIERHITE °

(2) FRERZLER T —RFMA +<HEER -

On 27 December 2011, Christine Princess, being a Shareholder,
adopted the Share Award Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme (collectively named as “the Schemes”). The Schemes
involve the transfer of existing Shares held by Christine Princess
in the Company to eligible participants under the Schemes. No
new Shares will be issued by the Company for the purposes
of the Schemes, nor will there be any grant of options over
new securities of the Company and accordingly, the Schemes
do not fall within the ambit of, and are not subject to, the
regulations under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Directors
consider the grant of the Share Award and the Share Options
has impact on the financial statements since the date of grant
and the subsequent financial periods. Such impact is disclosed
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report. A summary of the terms of the Schemes has
been set out in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company
dated 10 February 2012 under the section headed “D. OTHER
INFORMATION".

As at 31 December 2016, the following shares have been
awarded under the Share Award Scheme:

RERREGRE
BREROHE BREI
Number of Approximate percentage of
Shares awarded shareholding held upon the award
4,125,000 0.41
1,125,000 0.1
1,125,000 0.1

Notes:
(1) Ms. Xiuping Zhu retired on 28 February 2013 and ceased to be the chief

executive officer of the Company on the same date.

(2) Ms. Qiuyi Yu resigned on 16 April 2015.
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BEZ—RE+°-A=1+—0 CREBREAIRLEERS
RATRRIATHEARAE

SREER

Category of participants

REEERERE

Senior management of the Group

R AL (BHR)

Connected person (Ching-Ying Lo)
Hitlg 8 hAa B2 HE

Other employees and eligible persons

EBWBR O EERVER

BT ARESEREEI  REE-T—R"F+-A=1+—H
IEFEEARR - EEOEAEN T ENES - FEZEH
FEBERMISHmN TR WEBKEARR R NEEEM
BR - RFTETEETMZFEN  NRARHEEMME AR
MBI EMZEE USER - RESBORBIARM185
B FZME R EAE A B RRESZFRER -

BREMSRRHBE

Number of Shares

the Share Options

As at 31 December 2016, the following share options have
been granted but not yet exercised under the Share Option
Scheme:

B EERBTEER
FisRERNED L
Approximate percentage of
shareholding held upon exercise
of all the Share Options

subject to

1,487,700 0.147
79,400 0.008
5,784,994 0.573

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2016 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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FHBRNAF RS P IERRMEEIT

BRZEBEATRS RO THRAAARBERERS
(FER EWHRREAZ)WEMN BB BEALTRS
(iNE—REBAMEEDE  BERIHZSEHEALRS
HRATEREBERIXNFERERS (TER LTHRAE
1AAE ) I E MR A RASEFE 2 S WA RGIEE B ER
BRP(EEREMABAEI4AT)NE FEBEZEALTR
5 (Z EMRBN4AB0ETE T 2 BRIRR) « 478 P wEMT
H37@EBRAMEATRINEMT FEXN T EREIFER
ERXH(ERRLEMBREIF4AR)  MEEERNARDER
ETRAIE14AZ B THERT

AR FE37(0 )%&ﬁ?%ﬁ%/\i*%m*%fﬂf%
EHRAEVUAERER S IK[FEMEX S | 2&8E - At
$E%T\¢E$ETJ§J:m%ﬁﬂ‘J%MA%ETrﬁE%?BZEg%EE °

AEEREARATETTETRS - BB LTHRE - Z5A
TRAR TE'JF'QEEA:E BELEMHRA - ZEXFEEAFE
BER S - WERKE LR RRRE R AFRAREE - FF4ERH
EBROWFEAT

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 37 of the
consolidated financial statements contained herein.

In relation to those related party transactions, save as (i) the
related party transactions with Aroma Coffee which are not
regarded as the Company’s continuing connected transactions
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules; (ii) each
of the related party transactions with Yi Pin Xuan regarding
the sales of property, plant and equipment, other income and
rental income from operating leases which are regarded as
fully exempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;
and (iii) the related party transactions with Shanghai Hongda
which are regarded as continuing connected transactions as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, subject to
the requirements under Rule 14A.60, the other transactions
disclosed in note 37(a) of the consolidated financial statements
as related party transactions constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and the Directors confirm that the
Company had complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions disclosed in note 37(b) of the consolidated
financial statements as related party transactions did not fall
under the scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and therefore are not required to comply with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Group had entered into certain transactions with parties
which are connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. These transactions are considered to be continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which need
to be disclosed herein in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are as follows:
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RZE—NENAZ+RB  EERFAFKTREmMER
AR ERBERAT])  LEEaEeEaRA (L
BEAME])  LEETERRERAT(LESET
7)) EERAKTHEENRRARAR( LigF
FEM )  mREAMTERARAR(ERERN#&
STD - MR ER AR (TRMBE ) BRI
HEEHMERAR(RIEE]) - ZARK31.36%
ERRERBAFNTESERRALEENBE AR
£ Bl ERMBALENIINBE SR ERBRIIEA
3.95% M : (D) ERMAEEMNINFERRELETE
RITHH3.00% % : ROFRALE=ZBTFTLHEE
60% A FlHao Sheng Group Holdings Limited# A R
JLEE40.68% A% HE o )R BRI 4R E HERE ([ ERT
RIREHEGRE]) Bt AEBERERRILIEA
HEREGEEMEHEFZERRBEAS B8 - EHXR
HintiEEm) - BABKEDIRATEEETE - WK
RABIEANAMEENERRITMERELR - REX
WATMER  NEEBR TRETEN2ZMRILA
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-

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

M

On 26 August 2014, Shanghai Christine Foodstuff
Co., Ltd.* (EiERA TEMBER LA (“Shanghai
Christine”), Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery Co., Ltd.*
(b8 meERATR) (“Shanghai Shuanghong
Bakery”), Shanghai Ji Yuan De Foodstuff Co., Ltd.* (=
BETERMARAE), ("Shanghai Ji Yuan De”),
Shanghai Christine Sweet Art Foodstuff Co., Ltd.*
(BERAKTHEZMEMARAQA) ("Shanghai
Sweet Art"), Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd.* (F
R TRMEEMAE) ("Nanjing Christine”) and
Hangzhou Danbi Foodstuff Co., Ltd.* (fi/NFfHHL B &

[ 72 7)) (“Hangzhou Danbi”) entered into a renewed
master supply agreement with Wujiang Shangpu
Packing Products Co., Ltd.* (RITEEREZFRA
Al) (“Wujiang Shangpu”), approximately 31.36% of
the effective interest of which is collectively owned by
the associates of Mr. Chi-Ming Chou, currently a non-
executive Director, namely (a) 3.95% by Mr. Zheng
Yulin, being the nephew of Mr. Chi-Ming Chou; (b)
3.00% by Mr. Liu Nongjie, being the nephew of Mr.
Chi-Ming Chou; and (c) 40.68% by Hao Sheng Group
Holdings Limited, a company owned by three children
of Mr. Chi-Ming Chou as to 60% (the”Renewed
Wujiang Master Supply Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase from Wujiang
Shangpu paper packaging materials which are mainly
used for wrapping and packaging of mooncakes,
bread, cakes and other bakery products. The relevant
pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis and
comparable to prevailing market rates of the products
supplied within the PRC. In determining the prevailing
market rates, the Group will make reference to the
prices from two or more independent suppliers before
placing a purchase order. The prices and terms agreed
are not higher and not less favourable to the Group
than those available from independent third parties
in the ordinary and usual course of business. The
Renewed Wujiang Master Supply Agreement and
the continuing connected transactions contemplated
thereunder and the respective annual caps for the three
years ending 31 December 2016 were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting held by the Company on
15 December 2014.
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—A-BHREZZE-XRF+ZA=1+—HE® - ZH
BEAREN—SRARS—TEH=ER 2 ELE@E
FBER T AL AL ©

RER - ANEBERTEERBEE R/ LS HE R
HERET IR BB RAREE999,000T - HEE
T RFT A=+ HUEFEZFERSHELER
A ARE24,300,0007T °

ARRR ZE—RF+—ANBERTRBI LB
BOUBERI RS AT +F-A-HEEZ
E-NF+ZA=1T—H - EEE-THBEFLHK
ARBHR—E-A"F+—ANBNRE -

RIZ-—MFENAZ+HRE  LERFHKT  LE%
AME - LBTERE LEMEEN  mRRA%
T MMNRAAT - BRRAAT - MR B
XEESBERAR( xR (—HAEE_T—X
FRAZANFMTEFHIBERENTRZEHRS
M RRDRIZ — BT A HE R (BT RBEEH
W] - it ARBERER LDERBRBANE
EME - B BOREMEEERNE TR (B
A0k 0k B2R - R B8 RNINE RER) - B
BRI FREEETFE - W ERFBEIRA M HENE
mBITHEANELK - REERTHER - ARES
RTREBITERN2ZEMAAA LB HEENER -
ZEBEERRER TSN R NERANEER — K
KA BEGBREDEBTE =T AT LA ER RN -
B XBGAMHERS  HEBETHRETHNSERER
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HEFE FRELEAQNAIR_ZE—WNFE+=A+HA
BITHBRB A EREB -

The Renewed Wujiang Master Supply Agreement is

for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2014 and expired
on 31 December 2016. The agreement would be
terminated at any time by either party upon three
months’ prior written notice to the other party.

During the year, the Group's total transaction
amount with Wujiang Shangpu contemplated under
the Renewed Wujiang Master Supply Agreement is
RMB6,999,000. The annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2016 is RMB24,300,000.

The Company entered into a new agreement with
Wujiang Shangpu on 8 November 2016 to renew
the above transactions from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 8 November 2016.

On 26 August 2014, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai
Sweet Art, Nanjing Christine, Hangzhou Christine,
Ningbo Christine and Hangzhou Danbi entered into
a renewed master supply agreement with Shanghai
Meixin Trade Co., Ltd.* (L/BEZE2ZE S5 HRE A F)
(“Shanghai Meixin"), which is wholly-owned by the
family of Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, a former executive
Director until 3 June 2016 (the "Renewed Meixin
Master Supply Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group agreed to purchase from Shanghai Meixin
certain ingredients (such as butter, milk powder, dried
fruits, preserved fruits, enzymes, additives and honey)
for the production of bread, cakes, pastries and other
bakery products. The relevant pricing is determined
on an arm’s length basis and comparable to prevailing
market rates of the products supplied within the PRC.
In determining the prevailing market rates, the Group
will make reference to the prices from two or more
independent suppliers before placing a purchase order.
The prices and terms agreed are not higher and not
less favourable to the Group than those available from
independent third parties in the ordinary and usual
course of business. The Renewed Meixin Master Supply
Agreement and the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder and the respective annual
caps for the three years ending 31 December 2016
were approved at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 15 December 2014.
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The Renewed Meixin Master Supply Agreement is for a
term of 3 years from 1 January 2014 and expired on 31
December 2016. The agreement would be terminated
at any time by either party upon three months’ prior
written notice to the other party.

During the year, the Group’s total transaction
amount with Shanghai Meixin contemplated under
the Renewed Meixin Master Supply Agreement is
RMB5,544,000. The annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2016 is RMB37,200,000.

The Company entered into a new agreement with
Shanghai Meixin on 8 November 2016 to renew the
above transactions from 1 January 2017 to 30 June
2017. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 8 November 2016.

On 26 August 2014, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai
Sweet Art, Nanjing Christine, Hangzhou Christine,
Ningbo Christine and Hangzhou Danbi entered into
a renewed master supply agreement with Shanghai
Tongcan Foodstuff Co., Ltd.* (HERERRBERERD
7)) (“Shanghai Tongcan”), which is wholly-owned
by Tong Li Food Co., Ltd. which, in turn, is held as
to 15% by Fine Up Enterprise Co., Ltd., a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, a former
executive Director until 3 June 2016, and 27.925%
collectively by the spouse and two children of Mr.
Hung (the”Renewed Shanghai Tongcan Master
Supply Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to purchase from Shanghai Tongcan certain
fillings for production of bread, cakes, mooncakes
and other bakery products, such as sugary fillings and
Chinese chestnuts (“Tongcan Supply”). Since the
Tongcan Supply are tailor-made products which are
solely provided to the Group and Shanghai Tongcan
is the sole supplier of the Tongcan Supply, there are
strictly no comparable purchase transactions with other
independent third party suppliers. The Group will make
reference to the prices of other fillings, which is similar
to but not the same as the Tongcan Supply, produced
by Shanghai Tongcan to independent third parties. The
Tongcan Supply is provided to the Group at a price
not higher than that of the other fillings provided by
Shanghai Tongcan to independent third parties. The
relevant pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis,
and with respect to Tongcan Supply, Shanghai Tongcan
undertakes that the terms shall be no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to independent third
parties. The Renewed Shanghai Tongcan Master Supply
Agreement and the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder and the respective annual
caps for the three years ending 31 December 2016
were approved at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 15 December 2014.
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The Renewed Shanghai Tongcan Master Supply
Agreement is for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2014
and expired on 31 December 2016. The agreement
would be terminated at any time by either party upon
three months’ prior written notice to the other party.

During the Year, the Group’s total transaction amount
with Shanghai Tongcan contemplated under the
Renewed Shanghai Tongcan Master Supply Agreement
is RMB1,045,000. The annual caps for the year ended
31 December 2016 is RMB11,700,000.

The Company entered into a new agreement with
Shanghai Tongcan on 8 November 2016 to renew
the above transactions, from 1 January 2017 to 30
June 2017. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 8 November 2016.

On 26 August 2014, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Nanjing
Christine, Hangzhou Christine, Ningbo Christine and
Hangzhou Danbi entered into a new master supply
agreement with Yi Pin Xuan, which is wholly-owned by
Gourmet Holding Co., Ltd., which, in turn, is wholly-
owned by Ms. Ching-Ying Huang Lo, being the sister
of Mr. Tien-An Lo, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company (the “New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Supply Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group agreed to provide to Yi Pin Xuan certain
ingredients and other miscellaneous items including
flour, sugar and oil. The pricing for the ingredients
provided is determined on an arm’s length basis and
based on the actual costs of the ingredients sourced
by the Group at prevailing market rates. This is
conditional upon Yi Pin Xuan providing the Christine-
branded products at a price which is not more than
60% of the retail prices under the New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Processing Agreement (as defined below). The
prices and terms agreed under the New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Supply Agreement and the New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Processing Agreement as a whole are not
less favourable to the Group than those available to
independent third parties in the ordinary and usual
course of business. The New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply
Agreement and the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder and the respective annual
caps for the three years ending 31 December 2016
were approved at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 15 December 2014.

The New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply Agreement is for a
term of 3 years from 1 January 2014 and expired on 31
December 2016. The agreement would be terminated
at any time by either party upon three months’ prior
written notice to the other party.
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During the year, the Group's total transaction amount
with Yi Pin Xuan contemplated under the New Yi Pin
Xuan Master Supply Agreement is RMB5,799,000. The
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2016 is
RMB5,900,000.

On 26 August 2014, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Nanjing
Christine, Hangzhou Christine, Ningbo Christine and
Hangzhou Danbi entered into a new master processing
agreement with Yi Pin Xuan (the “New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Processing Agreement”), pursuant to which
Yi Pin Xuan agreed to process and produce Christine-
branded products to the Group. The pricing for the
processed products supplied is determined on an arm’s
length basis and set at a price which does not exceed
60% of the retail prices of the Christine-branded
products. This is conditional upon the ingredients
being supplied by the Group to Yi Pin Xuan at actual
costs (which are also the prevailing market rates)
pursuant to the New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply
Agreement. The prices and terms agreed under the
New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply Agreement and the
New Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing Agreement as a
whole are not less favourable to the Group than those
available to independent third parties in the ordinary
and usual course of business. The New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Processing Agreement and the continuing
connected transactions contemplated thereunder and
the respective annual caps for the three years ending
31 December 2016 were approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held by the Company on 15 December
2014.

The New Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing Agreement
is for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2014 and
expired on 31 December 2016. The agreement would
be terminated at any time by either party upon three
months’ prior written notice to the other party.

During the year, the Group's total transaction
amount with Yi Pin Xuan contemplated under the
New Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing Agreement is
RMB101,179,000. The annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2016 is RMB189,500,000.
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The Company entered into new agreements with Yi

Pin Xuan on 8 November 2016 to renew the above
transactions numbered 4 and 5 from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019 subject to independent
shareholders’ approval, and the resolution for
approving these new transactions was not passed by
the independent shareholders of the Company.

Subsequently on 30 December 2016, the Company
and Yi Pin Xuan entered into a master processing
agreement, pursuant to which the Group will provide
all ingredients (including flour, sugar and oil, etc.)
to Yi Pin Xuan for Yi Pin Xuan to process them into
Christine-branded products (mainly bread and cakes,
with others including pastries) for the Group in
accordance with the prescribed quality standards as set
out in the master processing agreement. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 8
November 2016, 16 December 2016 and 30 December
2016, and circular dated 28 November 2016.

On 1 January 2016, Shanghai Christine, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
purchase agreement with Shanghai Hongda Packaging
and Decorations Co., Ltd.* (LGB EREMHTE
R A7) (“Shanghai Hongda"”). During the period
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, Shanghai
Christine will purchase from Shanghai Hongda certain
packaging materials, disposable drinking tools and
tableware (the “2016 Shanghai Hongda Supply
Agreement”).

After Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu was appointed as executive
Director on 3 June 2016, he became a connected
person of the Company. Since Shanghai Hongda is
directly controlled by Hontex International Limited
which is wholly owned by Mr. Hsu, his spouse and
family members, Shanghai Hongda is an associate of
Mr. Hsu. After the appointment of Mr. Hsu, Shanghai
Hongda becomes a connected person of the Company.
Therefore, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, continuing transactions under the 2016
Shanghai Hongda Supply Agreement constitute the
Company’s continuing connected transactions.
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The 2016 Shanghai Hongda Supply Agreement is for
a term from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, transaction
amount paid by the Group to Shanghai Hongda under
the 2016 Shanghai Hongda Supply Agreement was
approximately RMB2,817,000.

Since the 2016 Shanghai Hongda Supply Agreement
expired on 31 December 2016, the Company’s
subsidiaries (including Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai
Sweet Art, Nanjing Christine, Hangzhou Christine,
Ningbo Christine and Hangzhou Danbi) entered into
a renewed master supply agreement (the “Renewed
Shanghai Hongda Master Supply Agreement”)
with Shanghai Hongda on 8 November 2016. From
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019, Shanghai
Hongda (an associate of executive Director Mr. Hung-
Sen Hsu) will supply the Group with materials including
packaging materials, disposable drinking tools and
tableware. As the highest applicable percentage
ratios for transactions contemplated under Renewed
Shanghai Hongda Master Supply Agreement exceed
0.1% but are below 5%, according to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, relevant transactions are subject
to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but are exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 25 July
2016 and 8 November 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors and audit committee
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
numbered 1 to 6 for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
are:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

2. entered into on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available from/
to independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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In accordance with the requirement of Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditors
to perform certain procedures on the above continuing
connected transactions. The auditors have reviewed the above
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong standards on
Assurance Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions Under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions:

1) have received the approval of the Board;

2) are, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company if the transactions
involve provision of goods or services by the Company;

3) have been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and

4) have not exceeded the cap.

The Directors consider that the Company has applied the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules and complied with the applicable code
provisions during the period from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016 as set out in the CG Code, except for the
deviations to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code

On 28 February 2013, Ms. Xiuping Zhu retired as the Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEO") of the Company. Mr. Tien-
An Lo ("Mr. Lo"”) was then taking up the duties of CEO until
a suitable candidate is found. Mr. Lo is the founder of the
Group and has over 20 years of experience in bakery and retail
industry. The Board currently believes that vesting the roles of
both Chairman and CEO in Mr. Lo will continue to provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.
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Audit Committee and Review of Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee has adopted written terms of reference
in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 have been audited by the Company’s
external auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required standard for
securities transactions by Directors. Specific enquiries have been
made to all the Directors and all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2016.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

BFRIATERRIZERER AT Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;<44 %R Annual Report 2016



RER - 28 « BERTSHMITERB AR R ZIMNERE
fh e ARBRR —_FE—tFRRBEAGRE - RERERTY
RERD SRTENTTAARRSNERBEN ZRER - EBETF
AN RABRE AL ELED

ARAEAE FTEREBIEE13.20 ~ 13.21 % 13.22 &8 N EmH
TS -

RRESFE
EHZ
E

mEEE —E—tF=A-+MmA

During the year, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu were appointed
as the external auditors of the Company. A resolution will be
submitted at the 2017 annual general meeting to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the external auditors of the
Company. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
past four years.

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations
under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Tien-An Lo
Chairman

Shanghai, PRC, 24 March 2017
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With an aim of creating an environment for the solid
sustainable growth of the Company and to enhance
shareholders’ confidence and protect shareholders’ interests,
the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company is committed to establishing an internally high
efficiency of corporate governance practices and procedures in
accordance with the Listing Rules and relevant applicable laws
and regulations.

The Company and the Board have adopted the code provisions
of the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Board believes that the Company has fully complied with
the CG Code except for the one disclosed below.

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirmed
that all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tien-An Lo (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu (appointed on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Ming-Tien Lin (@ppointed on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Dun-Ching Hung (removed on 3 June 2016)

Mr. Yu Lin (removed on 3 June 2016)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chi-Ming Chou

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Nianlin Zhu

Mr. Haiming Gao
Ms. Wanwen Su

wRISTBIFRER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;S 4%} Annual Report 2016



EENEREREBNERFBENAFRE2LBE28E - ES
SHEBETE  EFQMANERESETEREE &R - U
mEAEEZ EFBFFR - ZBELNOENHE - SEEHE
HAER RSB AR RREEABIEER - B RAKERE K
IEHERL -

BAFHTES

ARRERE=ZBHIUIFNTES  HEFERE=02—M
£ A ETRAEII0NENRTE P — 2B IFTT
EERGHTAHEEERER  BIFNTESMAEZEE
B R ER M EREMARCEE AER 2 EM - WU IFNT
BERTRHUAIRERTFE  AMREAEERERR 2 M& -
Heb i AFR EX PR ERERS - EFSHER
ARBEREBREILIFNITESRIE EMARAE3 3R N
ZERBUERE - Bt ARRRRAERZETHRE

VA

FHITESZEB

BIHITER(REBYIENTER ) EEAREEIERTE
HRRG RS BT AE=4 BREZTEEERRE
FRE HERET - RIBARB ZAHBERME > =D 22—
BEFEAEEVBFRREBFREHREEE—XN - REESES
ERPNERTHBREBEFTAS ELEEET - FPTEESR
BRAELBEHRARBE RE DS VERBFETAIENTES
EEHRARNBR L —OETRERE AR —AF A
Z+=HBAB=F - BYIERITEERSREEZTEA
HRETBHEAE=F MBI IERITERR ML ENRTE
Y IEITE EE e N LTI AN BB TIRE W - T8
M- RAF-_A-+=A:tAH=F-

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 23 to 28 of this annual
report. The composition of the Board is well balanced which
ensures that the unique expertise and experience of each
Director are pooled together to meet the business needs
of the Group and for the purposes of making independent
well-balanced judgments. Each Director has the relevant
professional and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience, and thus will contribute well to the business
success of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing over one third of the members of the
Board in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.
One of the independent non-executive Directors has the
professional qualification of accounting. The independent non-
executive Directors serve the important function of ensuring
and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. Their participations provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of the Group and its
shareholders, including the review of the continuing connected
transactions described above in this annual report. The Board
confirms that the Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

Term of Non-executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into service agreements
with the Company for a specific term of three years and are
required to offer themselves for re-election at the first annual
general meeting following their appointment. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years. Retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election at the annual general
meeting at which he or she retires. Mr. Chi-Ming Chou, a
non-executive Director, has renewed his service agreement
with the Company and a supplemental service agreement has
also been entered into between him and the Company with
respect to the re-designation as a non-executive Director for
a term of three years commencing from 23 February 2015.
The term of Mr. Haiming Gao, an independent non-executive
Director, commenced from the date of appointment for a term
of three years. Both of Mr. Nianlin Zhu, an independent non-
executive Director, and Ms. Wanwen Su, an independent non-
executive Director, have renewed their service agreements with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 23
February 2015.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and
affairs of the Company. The primary duty of the Board is to
ensure the ongoing operation of the Company and to ensure
that it is managed in the best interests of the shareholders
as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Board delegates the authority and
responsibility of daily operations, business strategies and day-
to-day management to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")
and the senior management.

Delegation by the Board

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Strategy
and Investment Committee, Corporate Governance Committee
and the senior management.

Management Function

The division of responsibility between the Board and
management is determined by the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company. The authority of making daily
decisions has been delegated by the Board to the management.

Chairman and CEO

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be served by different
individuals to achieve a balance of authority and power.

On 28 February 2013, Ms. Zhu retired as the CEQ. Mr. Tien-
An Lo was then taking up the duties of CEO until a suitable
candidate is found. Mr. Lo is the founder of the Group and
has over 20 years of experience in bakery and retail industry.
The Board currently believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and CEO in Mr. Lo will continue providing the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. The retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election under the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”). Under the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board, either to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until
the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall be
eligible for re-election.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting convened and held
in accordance with the Company’s Articles, remove a Director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Company’s
Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such
Director.

Continuous development of Directors and senior
management of the Company

During the year, the Company arranged the auditors to
organize for all Directors namely, Mr. Tien-An Lo, Mr. Hung-
Sen Hsu, Mr. Ming-Tien Lin, Mr. Dun-Ching Hung (removed on
3 June 2016), Mr. Yu Lin (removed on 3 June 2016), Mr. Chi-
Ming Chou, Mr. Nianlin Zhu, Ms. Wanwen Su and Mr. Haiming
Gao and senior management members, one training session
on the topic of notifiable transactions, and all directors have
attended such training session. The Company also arranged the
company secretary to provide reading materials for all directors
on corporate governance and changes to laws and regulations
for their reference and study. Directors are requested to
provide their training records to the Legal Department.
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BRREAE Mr. Tien-An Lo
HHERAE Mr. Dun-Ching Hung
(R-FE-—FENA=ARESL) (removed on 3 June 2016)

WEEE(R=—F—NENH=HKESE)  Mr. YuLin (removed on 3 June 2016)

SRR Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu
(R=F—FENF=HEZH) (appointed on 3 June 2016)

MEEEE Mr. Ming-Tien Lin
(R=F-—NENA=HEZI) (appointed on 3 June 2016)

FRARAE Mr. Chi-Ming Chou

PN vt Mr. Nianlin Zhu

Hrxat Ms. Wanwen Su

BAR%E Mr. Haiming Gao

RARTEREFSERIN  TRNMNFRAETERMATES
HENER TEELFITESRITER

Directors’ and Senior Officers’ Liability Insurance
and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior officers for their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended 31
December 2016, no claim has been made against the Directors
and senior officers.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly and four times in one
year. A notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors at least
14 days prior to the date of the meeting to enable all Directors
to attend the meetings. The agenda of the meeting shall be
determined after consulting each Director so that each Director
is given the opportunity to include his/her proposals into the
agenda.

Attendance of each Director at all the board meetings and
general meetings during the year is as follows:

/BT BT
FE P BRREEFHY
Number of HEE Number of HEE
board meetings Attendance  general meeting Attendance
attended/held ratio attended/held ratio
4/4 100% 33 100%
1/4 25% 33 100%
1/4 25% 33 100%
3/4 75% 13 33.3%
24 50% 013 0%
4/4 100% 213 66.7%
4/4 100% 03 0%
4/4 100% 33 100%
4/4 100% 013 0%

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held a
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of other executive Directors during the year.
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=/ERLE Mr. Haiming Gao
KoM E Mr. Nianlin Zhu
Bt Ms. Wanwen Su

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee consists of
three members, namely Mr. Haiming Gao, Ms. Wanwen Su
and Mr. Nianlin Zhu. All of the committee members, including
Mr. Haiming Gao, the chairman of the Audit Committee, who
has a professional qualification in financial management and
accountancy, are independent non-executive Directors. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters, including the review of
the interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2016 and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 and considered that the Company had complied with
all relevant accounting standards and requirements and made
adequate disclosures.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held two meetings.
The attendance of each member at the Audit Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:

HE BT
NWEREES
BEXE HE=
Number
of Audit
Committee
meetings Attendance
attended/held ratio
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 27 December 2011
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph B1 of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second
model described in paragraph B.1.2(c) under Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules (i.e. make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Director and senior management member). The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include but without
limitation: (i) making recommendations to the Board on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the
specific remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals resolved by the
Directors from time to time; and (iv) evaluating and making
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements. The
Remuneration Committee comprises one executive director and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Nianlin
Zhu (Chairman), Ms. Wanwen Su and Mr. Tien-An Lo.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held two
meetings and performed the following main tasks:

- making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors

- review of the emoluments of the executive Directors

- review of the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management

The attendance of each member at the Remuneration
Committee meetings is set out in the following table:

HE BT
WEHEES
BRI HE=
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
meetings Attendance
attended/held ratio
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management,
including a director and chief executive officer of the Company
by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
below:

AE

Number of

FrEEEE Remuneration bands individuals
75%1,000,0007C RIA T HK$1,000,000 and under 4
7&5#1,000,0017C 2% 1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 -
711,500,001 702 %% 2,000,000 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1

712,000,001 7T 2% 2,500,0007T

EHEEME R ANSSFINES 2 B2 HBHNRA BB ®R
FIFE9 ©

REZEE

AARBRRZE——F+Z A T+HERIREZEG((RE
ZRE)) WERGEREATRIFEASEHIEEEBERE -
REZEGZIZRAEABNESTSHANULRARREEZ
RERBERAEFSRMHERBRE - RARBS8E—2HT
B WEBMFTES  RSMEE(ERE) - SEHL
ERBERRE

EREEFENEMAAR  REZEEERANFRZEFTEN
BT EBRAELZEI mEEESEEREZ L - BHEE
TRREMA - Fik - MEREEES - Bk FELR K
B MRRRBED - REZBEEIHIBERERNESS
REZTTENMBERERR  YAEETSEZAFHEEFEAH
BRAA

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 -

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A5 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the Board composition and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of Directors of the Company. The Nomination
Committee comprises one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Nianlin Zhu
(Chairman), Mr. Haiming Gao and Mr. Tien-An Lo.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Committee would consider a number of factors as set out in
the Company’s Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree
on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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Measurable Objectives of Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board
currently comprises seven Directors, including 1 female and 6
male Directors. There are 1 Director at the age range of 41-
50, 2 Directors at the range of 51-60 and 4 Directors aged
61 or above, of which 4 Directors are from Taiwan and 3
from China. In respect of educational background, 2 Directors
have obtained master degree and 1 Director has obtained
doctorate degree. The members of the Board have rich
experiences in enterprise operation and management, bakery,
nutrition and healthy living, management and finance, finance
and accounting, and enhance their business skills through
continuous learning and training. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the members, structure and composition of the
Board, and is of the opinion that the rational structure of the
Board and the experiences and skills of the Directors in various
aspects and fields may enable the Company to maintain high
standard operation. Details on the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

Before appointments are made by the Board, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate the skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation prepare a
description of the role and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee will (where applicable and appropriate):

1. Use public advertisement or the services of external
consultants to facilitate the search;

2. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds;
and
3. Consider candidates on merit and against objective

criteria, taking into account the amount of time
required to be devoted to the position.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee has held two
meetings and performed the following work:

- review of the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of
the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive directors

- consideration of the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the annual general
meeting

The attendance of each member at the Nomination Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:

HE BT
MREZEESE
RPN HE=R
Number of
Nomination
Committee
meetings Attendance
attended/held ratio
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Corporate Governance Committee is to implement the
Company’s internal control rules and advise and provide
guidance on matters relating to corporate governance. The
Corporate Governance Committee holds meetings monthly
and members of the Committee are required to report to
the Company Secretary, who reports to the Board during
the quarterly Board meetings. The Corporate Governance
Committee is chaired by Ms. Yan Yang, the manager of
the purchase department of the Company, and consists of
Mr. Weilun Liao, the vice president of the Company, Ms.
Chuanhong Bian, the director of the group finance department
of the Company, and Ms. Yan Cheng, the manager of the
group human resources department of the Company. The
Corporate Governance Committee does not comprise any
independent non-executive Director, non-executive Director or
executive Director.
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The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties. The Company
adopted code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code as the duties
of the Corporate Governance Committee in performing its

corporate governance functions. During the year of 2016, the
Corporate Governance Committee has performed the following
duties in respect of its corporate governance function:

1. reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

2. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. reviewing the Company’s compliance with Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report).

HE BT
TtEEREZES

RN HE=R
Number of
Corporate
Governance
Committee

meetings Attendance

attended/held ratio

12/12 100%

12/12 100%

2/12 16.7%

12/12 100%
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The Board has established a Strategy and Investment
Committee (the “Strategy and Investment Committee”)
on 22 March 2013 with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee
include, without limitation: (1) report to the Board on its
work, significant decisions, findings and recommendation
in connection with the potential investment or strategic
investment reviewed, analyzed or evaluated; (2) remind the
Board of the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in
connection with any potential strategic investment reviewed,
analyzed or evaluated; (3) get informed of the backgrounds of
the investments; (4) ensure the investments are in compliance
with local policies and regulations; (5) execute its powers strictly
within the authorities granted by the Board through reviewing,
analyzing, evaluating and approving investment opportunities;
and (6) timely report to the Board if necessary. From 1 January
2016 to 3 June 2016, the Strategy and Investment Committee
comprised three members, namely Mr. Tien-An Lo (Chairman),
Mr. Dun-Ching Hung and Mr. Haiming Gao. Mr. Dun-Ching
Hung was removed on 3 June 2016, and Mr. Ming-Tien Lin,
being an executive Director, has been appointed to be a
member of the Strategy and Investment Committee since 3
June 2016. From 3 June 2016, the Strategy and Investment
Committee comprises of two executive directors and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Tien-An Lo
(Chairman), Mr. Ming-Tien Lin and Mr. Haiming Gao.

During the year, the Group had no material investments.
Accordingly, the Strategy and Investment Committee has not
held any meeting during the year.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The Statement of the Company’s
auditor as to its responsibility for the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual
report. There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or circumstances which would significantly cast doubt over the
Company’s ability to operate as a going concern.

Internal Control and Risk Management
Objectives and Goals

The Board of Directors provides reasonable assurance for
the effective operation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system. The system aims to ensure the
operation and management of the Company complies with
laws and regulations and ensure the security of the Company’s
asserts and the truthfulness and completeness of the
Company'’s financial reports and relevant information.

Monitoring framework
Board of Directors

- Supervise the establishment of internal control and its
sound and effective implementation;

- Clear enterprise development strategy and important
decision-making, and establish enterprise’s acceptable
risk tolerance level;

- Clarify the responsibilities and rights of various special
committees and management, and provide support for
the Board's decision-making.

BFRIATERRIZERER AT Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;<44 %R Annual Report 2016



FRZRE

- BB R RINBEPEE HZ # B E S R BRI RHE TIEH
=i

- BERATNP B ERRERKE

- FNERABDMINEL R EIE B ESRE R TS
 WEE LB AR EINFRA AT TS o

EEE
- ZERG  BREMEERBEERERRAS - LR
HGUAERNT

fE SR R PR 1) R BRE

- MEEFSRRERERREZERFHBERIL -

BB & EFFT

- HABEENBREETEERS

- HEBREPREROAMENRE - RREEXNNE
St LYERZFFfETTHRE ©

Audit Committee

- Supervise the formulation of internal audit system of
the Company and the implementation of work on
internal control evaluation;

- Review the Company's financial information and its
disclosure;

- Fully grasp the scope of work of internal and external
auditors in the inspection of internal control and if
necessary, communicate with external auditors about
significant issues.

Management

- Properly design, implement and supervise risk management
and monitoring systems and ensure that they are effectively
implemented;

- Respond promptly to and follow up the findings of
internal or external auditors' investigations on internal
control matters;

- Assure the Board of Directors of effectiveness of risk
management and monitoring system.

Internal audit department

- Supervise and inspect the effectiveness of internal
control;

- Report in accordance with the internal audit work
procedures of enterprise internal control deficiencies
found in supervision and inspection.
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Monitoring methods

Management has adopted a variety of methods to monitor
internal control environment.

1. Methods: The management actively communicates
with relevant staff, review deficiencies of the design
of internal control manual and related documents
and make improvements through effective measures.
Report the scope of inspection of risk management
and internal control and results to Audit Committee for
assessment every year.

2. Internal control manual and operational guidelines:
Develop internal control manuals and related systems
to ensure the safety of assets in order to avoid
unauthorized use or disposal, Ensure compliance with
legal requirements, maintain appropriate accounting
records to provide reliable financial information for
internal use or external disclosure.

3. Information system and technology: the Company's
information system covers business level, financial level
and management level. The Company sets up stringent
rights of operation for its staff to avoid non-separation
of incompatible duties. The system rights of all staff
have been authorized.

4. Reporting and differences analysis: Execute financial
analysis and budget execution analysis on subsidiaries
and develop a timely understanding of numerous
companies’ operation situation.

Risk Management

Risk management processes include: risk identification, risk
assessment, risk processing and risk monitoring and review.
The management of the Company is responsible for the
design, implementation and inspection of risk management
and internal control systems with the assistance of the audit
committee and the internal audit department and submit the
relevant periodic reports to the Board of Directors or the audit
committee.

1. Risk identification: the Board of Directors and
management identify internal and external risk factors
that affect realization of the Company's objectives.
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2. Risk assessment: the Board of Directors and management
determine the method of managing risks based on the
likelihood and impact of risk factors.

3. Risk processing: The Board and management select risk
management strategies based on the Company's risk
tolerance and risk preference.

4. Risk monitoring and review: In June each year, the
Company’s internal audit department examines
the internal control operation of the Group and its
subsidiaries covering the first half of the year and puts
forward the rectification suggestions for the control
defects found in the inspection process. At the end of
each year, the internal audit department will check the
operation of the internal control of various companies
covering the second half of the year, while tracking
the rectification of control deficiencies of various
companies covering the first half of the year to ensure
that various companies’ defects have been rectified. It
also reports overall comments to the audit committee
on risk management. The Company’s risk management
level is enhanced through sharing risk knowledge with
different business units.

Internal control

The internal audit department of the Company semi-annually
inspects the internal control of such aspects as operation,
finance and compliance, reports the results of the review to
the management, and makes suggestions for improvement in
the internal control of the Company. The results of the internal
audit and rectification plan shall be reported to the audit
committee and the Board of Directors in a timely manner.

The Board was informed that the management has gradually
implemented a comprehensive internal monitoring system and
ensured the effective operation of the Company's operating,
financial and compliance aspects.

1. Financial Reporting Management:

- Appropriate monitoring measures have been
established to ensure a comprehensive,
accurate and timely record of accounting and
management information;

- Issue financial statements to all Directors
on a monthly basis to show the Company's
operating conditions, financial status and
outlook assessment;
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- External auditors audit consolidated financial
statements every year to ensure consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Company's accounting policies and
applicable laws and regulations.

2. Insider Information Processing and Disclosure: The
Group regulates the handling and disclosure of
insider information in accordance with the Company's
responsibility policy and related procedures to ensure
confidentiality prior to the appropriate disclosure
of relevant information and to disseminate relevant
information in an efficient and consistent manner.

3. Through measures such as the setting up of suggestion
box, whistle-blowing telephone and whistle-blowing
mailbox, we encourage employees to report any
misconduct which may arise from financial reporting,
internal control and other issues. Internal audit
department will undertake investigation and collect
relevant evidence, and will report to the Board of
Directors if the issues are confirmed.

4. Internal audit department semi-annually checks the
compliance of the Company with relevant laws and
regulations to ensure that the Company's business
activities are in compliance with the laws and
regulations.

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee have
reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, as well as the responsibilities and work of the internal
audit department, and have not found any major problem
which may adversely affect the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group’s system, the independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the internal audit function.

In addition, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Company’s compliance records on the internal
control measures and the relevant laws and regulations
quarterly, and confirmed the Company’s compliance records
for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Audit service:
Audit services for 2016
Non-audit service:

For more information on the Group’s environmental protection
practices and performance, employee relations, and other ESG-
related risks, please refer to the Group's ESG Report 2016,
which will be separately uploaded to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange by the end of June 2017.

An analysis of the remuneration payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the Company’s Auditors, during the year is set out as
follows:

RATIR it
RIEER,
ERz8R
Fees paid/
payable for
services
rendered
ARBFT

RMB’000

2,400
NEM

2,400

The Company engages Mr. Chiu Ming King, the executive
director of Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK)
Limited, external service provider, as its company secretary. His
primary contact at the Company is Mr. Weilun Liao, the vice
president of Finance and accounting of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the
year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Chiu has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his
skills and knowledge.
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The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal
forum for dialogue with shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations of
the Group. The Company’s Articles of Association allows a
shareholder entitled to attend and vote to appoint more than
one proxy to attend and vote on behalf of the shareholder and
also provides that a proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company.

Code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent in the
case of the annual general meeting at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and in the case of all other general
meetings at least 10 clear business days before the meeting.

The Company’s external auditor is invited to attend the
Company’s annual general meeting and will assist the Directors
in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’
report.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders
who wish to propose resolutions may follow article 58 of the
Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and
including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and
procedures of article 58 are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Environmental Policy

The Company is committed to the sustainable development
of the environment and the society. Apart from making
corresponding investment that complies with relevant national
laws and reaches statutory standard, we have also referred to
the practices of industry players in developed countries and
prepared for sustainable management and self-improvement.
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Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognizes that the employees, customers and
suppliers of the Company are keys to the sustainability journey
of the Company. The Group expects employees, customers
and suppliers to be the companions along the way to business
growth who share benefits and share same experience in brand
growth.

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. The latest version of the Articles of
Association is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. Shareholder may refer to the Articles of
Association for details of their rights.

The Company maintains a website at www.christine.com.cn
which contains the Company’s publicly disclosed financial
information, annual reports, news releases, announcements,
the procedures that shareholders can use to propose a person
for election as a Director and corporate developments.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company as follows:

Address:  No. 33, Jinshajiang Road, Putuo District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China

Fax: 86-21-6286-3333

Email: info@christine.com.cn

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHRISTINE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Christine International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 83 to 171, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matter

BE R E

Assessment of goodwill impairment

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill arising
from acquisitions of businesses as a key audit matter due to
significance of the Group’s goodwill in the context of the
Group's consolidated financial statements, combined with the
judgments involved in management’s impairment assessment
of goodwill.

Hangzhou Danbi Food Co., Ltd (“Hangzhou Danbi”) is
mainly engaged in producing and selling bakery products such
as bread and cakes.

A goodwill amounted to RMB20,147,000 was recognised in
Group's previous acquisition of Hangzhou Danbi.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

EERFNEERSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill arising from acquisitions included:

- Inquiring the management on their understanding
and method used for the impairment assessment of
goodwill;

- Evaluating the reasonableness of key inputs and
assumptions used by management in estimations of
value in use, including estimation of cash inflows/
outflows and the discount rate applied;
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Key audit matter

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, in 2016, the recoverable amount of Hangzhou
Danbi cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation, which uses cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by the management.

An impairment of goodwill of RMB 14,838,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

As set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the impairment assessment of goodwill is dependent on future
cash flows expected and a suitable discount rate. Details of
such judgements are disclosed in Note 17.

HANERE MK M 1 7PIIEE - RT—RF - MM
REeEA BN RESRCREREEAENETE - 518
EREEDNREENEEBZENM BRI RS RERA
et -

HE-Z—R"E+-_A=1t—"HIFE ®HRABEREAR
#14,838,0007T °

R A S RAM EAPR - FEREE DERGEFT AR
RERRABEZITRE - ZFHEFFIERME17HEE -

EERPFNEELE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

- Comparing cash flow projections to supporting
evidence, such as approved budgets, and evaluating
the reasonableness of these budgets with reference
to the past performance and our knowledge of the
business;

- Performing a sensitivity analysis for the key
assumptions;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill in accordance with
the requirements of the relevant accounting standard.
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment

We identified the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment as a key audit matter due to significance of
the Group's property, plant and equipment in the context
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements, combined
with the judgments involved in management’s impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment.

As disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2016, the Group had property,
plant and equipment other than buildings and construction-in-
progress of RMB108,248,000.

As a result of the Group's operating loss in the recent years,
the management carried out a review on the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment of each cash
generating unit. The review led to the recognition of
impairment loss of RMB 11,170,000 in respect of leasehold
improvements relevant to one newly established plant for the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
impairment of property, plant and equipment included:

- Inquiring the management on their determination
of impairment indication and their method used for
the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment;

- Comparing cash flow projections to supporting
evidence, such as approved budgets, and evaluating
the reasonableness of these budgets with reference
to the past performance and our knowledge of the
business;

- Performing a sensitivity analysis for the key
assumptions, such as projected growth rate for
revenue;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant accounting standard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

. REERAKELLSHTERNREEFELER - R
BRSNEZERE BERLFEEEMFXBEREH
MBEATHEN - tmAks BERERELENE
NELEARE ° MEAMRB/FEERNTEEME - A
BUERZEMBETIRFEERETRRAMBRE
THMRBINE - RUBBERETR - RIAETRMZ
BR - BHAMERDENBERBEN RS B B 1EPTER
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SEEIGERLE -

. FHEF A BRERNEBRIIHRSIRA - BBERAR - &8
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Wezs
SHERAN

E7H

HAb A
Hitb W zs N 18

7 MHERX
TS

HABFI X
DME— RS R R A

BT A B 1R
FSHiR X

RABHEB ARG
FRBEEREE
B Sz 485

GRUEE — EARRE ()

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Share of profit of an associate

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year attributable to

owners of the Company

Loss per share — Basic and diluted (cents)

Hrat
NOTES

18

10

12

—E—REF
2016
ARETT
RMB’000

925,705
(495,129)

430,576
12,864
(21,609)
(464,092)
(76,244)
(761)
467

(118,799)
(2,411)

(121,210)

(12.0)

—E—hF
2015
ARET T
RMB’000
1,061,750
(560,532)

501,218
13,776
(33,320)
(541,671)
(84,718)
(1,718)
382

(146,051)
(2,300)

(148,351)

(14.7)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZ=F—"E+=A=+—H At 31 December 2016

—E—RF
2016
Kiit AR¥T T
NOTES RMB’000
FREBEE Non-current assets
ME - R MR Property, plant and equipment 13 507,810
B AR E I8 Prepaid lease payments for land 14 74,093
E A E Intangible assets 15 17,570
Heke Rental deposits 10,295
BEIIERBEEZIRS Deposits for purchase of non-current assets 16 26,221
EES Goodwiill 17 =
R—EEE AT 2IKE Investment in an associate 18 2,792
A ESRIEE Available-for-sale financial assets 24 -
BIEFRIEE Deferred tax assets 19 24,092
662,873
RBEE Current assets
PR Inventories 20 28,581
B 5 &k H Al EE Trade and other receivables 21 62,537
FEURREAE N R IE Amounts due from related companies 22 10,875
TR &R 1T Restricted bank deposits 23 52,390
At HESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 24 35,000
RITHEBRNIRE Bank balances and cash 25 457,889
647,272
FRBaE Current liabilities
B 5 R EAMEMN A Trade and other payables 26 152,701
BRES Deposit from customers 27 461,364
BT RRE A RFIA Amounts due to related companies 28 3,644
FERT R IE Tax payables 2,063
FERRR S Dividend payable 4,708
624,480
MEVEEFRE Net current assets 22,792
BEERTBBE Total assets less current liabilities 685,665
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—EHF
2015
ARETT
RMB’000

547,941
76,294
16,712
11,389
28,259
14,838

2,325
35,000
25,001

757,759

29,286
74,133

4,929
51,700

517,990

678,038

121,468
491,861
8,197
2,443
4,708

628,677

49,361

807,120
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZF—"F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2016

FRBEE Non-current liabilities

FERIBRE Deferred tax liabilities

BRI A Deferred income

BRAR #E Capital and reserves

[N Share capital

] Reserves

RARER AFES Total equity attributable to
AR owners of the Company

FBRITNBZGAVEBRER_E—tF =+ AEE
EHERFETIE WAHILTESRARE

EHZ
Tien-An Lo

EF
DIRECTOR

—E—XF —T—hF

2016 2015

Mt AR¥T T ARETTT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB‘000
19 24,141 24,254
29 1,952 2,420
659,572 780,446

30 8 8
659,564 780,438

659,572 780,446

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 171 were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

R
Hung-Sen Hsu

EF
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

A
Share
capital
ARETT
RMB'000
RZT-RE-A—Az#&e  Balanceat 1 January 2015 8
ENEEREERTAE Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year -
BERNEREE ARG Recognition of equity-settled share-

REWZNH(HEE31) based payments (Note 31) =
BIRESK Share options forfeited s
AHAR Profit appropriation
W-E-RF+-A=1—F Balance at 31 December 2015

pid13 8
ENEEREERTAE Loss and total comprehensive expense

for the year -
BERMEREE ARG Recognition of equity-settled share-

REWZ N (HEE31) based payments (Note 31) =
BRESK Share aptions forfeited -
AHAR Profit appropriation =
RZZ—"E+-A=1+—H Balance at 31 December 2016

ki3 8

RHEE

Share
premium
ARETT
RMB'000

311,833

311,833

311,833

ADARRAEL

Attributable to owners of the Company

Bl

Special
reserve

ARBTR
RMB000

(Firska)
(Note a)

235,868

235,868

235,868

it

Reserves

RttRE LERHGEE

Other
reserve
ARETT
RMB‘000
(FitzED)
(Note b)

11,593

936
(2,322)

10,207

336
2312)

8,231

Statutory
surplus
reserves
AREFT
RMB'000
(PizEc)
(Note ¢)

110,990

606

111,59

456

112,052
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REEAN

Retained
earnings
ARETT
RMB'000

257,569

(148351)

2322
(606)

110,934

(121,210

2312
(456)

(8,420)

op>
Tk

Total

NEBTTL

RMB'000

927,853

(148351)

936

780,438

(121,210

336

659,564

Total
AREFTL
RMB'000

927,861

(148,351)

936

780,446

(121,210)

336

659,572
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

P

(a)

FZiEHER DR AKTREERDA([ EBRAKT DR _FZN
FAFERERKRE DS TRRMARAF ([ LBETE ) FIE8%
Lk EERANAT LERAAEARAR([RAEE]) KRR
T RMBRAR([FMREMAT ) 2 BEHRA R EEmEL LT
ERARARNNEERERSAERAT LmmETZREEMA
FRRTER BRI -

\

L b AR R R B MR A SR AR 2 BTSN R
T

5

RIBAEBHEERRERUARARRDENBRR 2 AEERAER
T BB R RIZA RS AR A A R b BT AR 5 2 AR & AT R B e B
BER((HEARERADRE M BEHRRAMZ M2 BRBHIOET
Z10%BARFERBFER - EATRHRRERBERATEMBE R
AIEEME A Z50%8 » AR LE[ADATE B AR RGK o

AEBSRBUARBHEFBR(E)  RARRERCETA
HEAA - R - P BEIERRETRREEEERAR - R
BRI A REHRENMHEN BT BB R REMEAR225% -

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The balance represented the reserve arising from Shanghai Christine
Foodstuff Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Christine”) acquired the remaining 8%
interest in Shanghai Ji Yuan De Foodstuff Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Ji Yuan
De") from non-controlling interest in 2008 and the paid in capital and
reserve of Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery Co., Ltd.
("Shuang Hong Bakery") and Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Christine”) recognised as special reserve upon completion
of group reorganization in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Other reserve represents fair values of outstanding share options
recognised as expense over their vesting periods on a straight-line basis.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit after taxation reported
in their financial statements prepared in accordance with relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to enterprises
established in the PRC (the “PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve. The appropriation to statutory surplus reserve may cease if
the balance of the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the
registered capital of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

The statutory surplus reserves can be used to make up prior year
losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means
of capitalization issue. However, when converting the statutory surplus
reserve of the PRC subsidiaries into capital, the balance of such reserve
remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of the registered
capital of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

REES

BB B 1R

HE

A BUA
HEWE - BB KRB ZER
O R AR
DME— RS R R
Y% BERRBITE
BB EME
AN E A

WE -~ BB LRERIERER
R E &S

VAR 7 A L8 2 (R B S
fRRR BB E R B U B)

BEESHHALLED

Reng
85 MEM RS D
BEeRERD

SR FISRITIE ZIE AN
FEURRRE N RSB CR L)

&
FERD
B 5 R EA AR MR D)
BERe CRd)1m
FERREE A R FECH D) 18 hn

REEH(AMERE
ERFEH

LR (PR ) TSRS 558

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts

Share of profit of an associate

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of prepaid lease payment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on goodwill

Share-based payment expense

Release of asset-related government grants

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in rental deposits

Increase in restricted bank deposits

(Decrease) increase in amounts due from related
companies

Decrease in inventories

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables

(Decrease) increase in deposit from customers

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to related
companies

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash (used in) generated from operating activities
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—
2016
AR®T T
RMB*000

(118,799)

(6,381)
2,199

(467)
66,084
2,493
2,113
11,170
14,838
336

(468)

(26,882)
10,938
1,094

(690)

(5,946)
705
26,565

(30,497)

(4,553)

(29,266)
(1,995)

(31,261)

—EHF
2015
ARETT
RMB’000

(146,051)

(7,135)
212
(1,085)
(382)
87,640
1,764
2,122
51,308
5,309
936
(506)

(5,868)
6,179
1,475

(11,511)

37,805
3,671
(23,605)
66,806

2,235

77,187
(2,869)

74,318
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

ERLE Interest received

HEME - BKER Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
RABFTISRUE equipment

HEHMSRMEEMSHIE Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets

L e Eo 5 B B Acquisition of other financial assets

g N E S REE Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets

BERVAE Purchase of intangible assets

EBEME  BENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment

WEEEMAR S FE Net cash used in investing activities

B RBELSEYORD)EINFEEE Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

R—A—BZzReRREeEFEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

R+ A=1+—HB2R&KRELEEY Cash and cash equivalents (comprising bank
(BRERTEHREES) balances and cash) at 31 December

—E—REF
2016
ARETT
RMB’000

2,386

648
577,895
(573,900)

(3,351)
(32,518)

(28,840)

(60,101)
517,990

457,889

—EHF
2015
ARETT
RMB’000

5,531

449,404
(447,800)
(35,000)
(215)
(36,793)

(64,873)

9,445
508,545

517,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AARTRZEENF=A+—RERSHSZEM
KRIZXBRBRAR  ERNHBE-T——-F_A
T ZHREERBBARIMBR AR ([BRA]) =
RET > RARZFEMHMHEER it ACricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

ARRT—HREZERAR - ERPEARKNE
(THE DRI MBAREER FHIEEREENE
& o HM B AR EREXBFBENHES -

REMBRRAARE (AR D2 BARER
HIfB AR 2 e E’siEm -

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The Company was incorporated on 11 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 23 February
2012. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are primarily engaged in the
production and sales of bakery products. The detailed
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

RASF RSB E Rz BB B EEAET

AEBERAFEEREA T HESSFED ”@
([BEREHMAE )EM 2B EUBRSERNZEFT

BB BHREERF 1157 WEHRR SR
Zf@ﬂ BRTERIE

BRGEAE IR ZER] BEEE

BRGTEAE165E K EERERMZITER

BREGHEREISR ZERT  HETX

BRERTEAE 165K
R G EREAR2EFT

BE  EEMHEY

BBV WELEAFE105: - REER : ERFE
AR ELERIE125% ABRZ BISMESR,
REBGTERE285
pd =)

NG

BB BRELL ZEFT BB RS 4R
T——FH
—EFERE
FEE

EAFERABBUHREEAEITAHARERNA
if&LEﬁVE’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁéfﬁb&#ﬂ&/ﬂﬁ%i ekt
BRERFAENRELBEATE

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to  Accounting for Acquisitions of

HKFRS 11 Interest in Joint Operations
Amendments to  Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 1

Amendments to  Clarification of Acceptable Methods
HKAS 16 and of Depreciation and Amortisation
HKAS 38

Amendments to  Agriculture: Bearer Plants
HKAS 16 and

HKAS 41

Amendments Investment Entities: Applying the
to HKFRS 10, Consolidation Exception
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

EEMGEERERZHIEEMBRELENRE
B R 2 ER]

REB W RIB T AT BB 8 R ERA RS
B EREEYRBEYHRELAZ2ER]

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

92

not yet effective:

EBMEMELDFE LRI A HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
ERTBMEEAEISH BFEOKEK HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
HERAEET Customers and related
Amendments’
BAUHmEERE165 FHE? HKFRS 16 Leases?
ERPBHREERFE2S UROERRZSIHDER Amendments to  Classification and Measurement
pd -] FE HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions'
EBYEMELELFAR  HWEBUBIREERFEL Amendmentsto  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
ZIERT BERIG A X fE A E BB HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
s HE R FE RS Rl Insurance Contracts'
TA
BB mELREISS BERBMBERELRE Amendments to  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
pd ) 1558 P& HE HKFRS 15 from Contracts with Customers!

BB TR E LR 1057

NEESFTERFE285% BhEIHENEENE HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
pd ) Dfut o HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
BBEERIETIR 2MEET BERHE R Amendmentsto  Disclosure Initiative?
HKAS 7
BB AERE125% FARER B EERELET Amendments to  Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
ZAEET THE E HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses*
1 Ro-TE—N\FE— B — A HERE Y FEHR AW - 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.
2 NoB— i — B — A sk E A B > 4 S HARS A 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
8 = 2019,
. e . " 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
3 AT B sk & Bin 2 FE AR AR - determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
4 RET—tF - A B EERR 2 FEHRER 2017.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the
Group are:

3 All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-
for-sale investments, including those currently stated
at cost less impairment, will either be measured as
fair value through profit or loss or be designated
as FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of the designation
criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss model
may result in early provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed
review.
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HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

. F— BT PRI IS . Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. BH HREHPNEHNET . Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

. F=F  EERHE . Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. FENN  BRGESEESHTHRARR . Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

i

. FRY  RERTKEOEER (it 7R

\r

performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont'd)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipated that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognized in the respective
reporting periods.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset in initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing and cash flows respectively.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group as lessee has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
RMB 129,544,000 as disclosed in Note 32. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognize a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors of the Company complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the
remaining new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
a material effect on the amounts recognized in the
Group's consolidated financial statements in future.
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The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in HKAS 36 Impairment of assets.

T —NFFEF Annual Report 2016 TFI#45T BIFR =R AR A 7 Christine International Holdings Limited

99



100

n'l-_r\ /=~ jﬁ%#&%ﬁfj
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bz

o=

s

AN MM BwREN S - AFEFERATENEZ
BABBZABREE RSB ABEREBHAFE
FAEZERMEINA/E— =& FHBHOT

. FE—RBABBERERNERAYAES A
FIEENBERERTS 2 RECREHAR)

. FE_RBABBRATTERRMERERZEEN
BEBABBEGIAZ —BRZRERIN) + &

. F=RBABEBERBEEXABZTABREA
g

REHBERHEIINAT ©
REE%E

RAMBBRREEBARF RBAREREMEQRE
%ZE%ZW%@% RRRE TFER TR

i

. EBEHREHR 2D

. R 2 BRAG E $ 5R BE T T AR AT 2 B 3R 2 R Bk
ERAE RN - R

. BEAMERERNUFEEDBER -

BB R BERBER EXAIEGIE L =THTEZ —8
HZBEAE  AASEEFFEESEEIRESR -

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

3 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income/consolidated statement of profit
or loss from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Business combinations (Cont'd)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.

° Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less any accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group's investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’ consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.
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Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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Leasing (Cont'd)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-
owned and no individual land ownership right exists.
The Group acquired the rights to use certain land.
The premiums paid for such rights are treated as
prepayments for operating leases and presented as
“prepaid lease payments for land” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-owned retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits (such as wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the amount
of benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Share-based payment arrangement
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options/shares granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options/shares
granted at the date of grant is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity as contribution from shareholders
("other reserve”).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to other reserve.

When the shares options are forfeited after the vesting
date, the amount previously recognized in “other
reserve” will be transferred to “retained earnings”.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
differences associated with the investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described
below), are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at
costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Cont'd)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets

The Group’'s financial assets are classified into
‘available-for-sale’ financial assets and ‘loans and
receivables’. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including rental
deposits, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related companies, other financial assets, bank
balances and cash and restricted bank deposits) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Loans and receivables (Cont’d)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been affected.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont‘d)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies, and
dividend payable) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont'd)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated
which is determined based on value in use. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
goodwill was zero (2015: RMB14.8 million) and
RMB14.8 million (2015: RMB5.3 million) impairment
loss has been recognized.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont'd)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and prepaid lease payments for
land

As described in Note 3 above, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and prepaid lease payment for land
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Determining
whether property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and prepaid lease payment for land are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the assets
and the fair value less costs of disposal. The value
in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group has recognised
an impairment loss of RMB106.6 million in relation
to property, plant and equipment (2015: RMB95.4
million).
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont'd)

Recognition of deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2016, deferred tax assets of
RMB24,092,000 (2015: RMB25,001,000) in relation
to bad-debt provision of trade receivables, temporary
differences of property, plant and equipment and
temporary differences of sales recognized, payroll
accruals and tax losses have been recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses of RMB411,081,000 (2015: RMB312,185,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends
on whether sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant
and equipment

As described in Note 3 above, the Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual value of property,
plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. For the current year, there was no change in
the useful lives and residual value of certain items of
property, plant and equipment.
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NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The chief operating decision maker (“CODM") reviews
the Group as a whole and internal reports reported
to the CODM included only revenue analysis by
product types and no other discretionary information
is prepared for resource allocation and performance
assessment. Therefore, no operating segment
information is presented.

Revenue analysis by product types

Wz

Revenue
—E—RF —T—hEF
2016 2015
ARET T ARBFIT
RMB*000 RMB’000
671,814 772,213
79,666 94,810
103,281 118,218
70,944 76,509
925,705 1,061,750

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue, loss before taxation, assets
and liabilities were derived from or located in the
PRC, and therefore no geographical information is
presented.

No single customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for both 2016 and 2015.
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
=F—RF —FTRF
2016 2015
ARETT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB‘000
FEUA Interest income 6,381 7,135
ERATH B (BT 5E) Government grants (Note) 6,015 6,135
BRI B FE S B 2 BRI BN Release of asset-related government grants 468 506
12,864 13,776
Mzt : ZESBEERUATEZEERRRAELREZF/mE Note:  The amounts primarily represented unconditional incentives
RS 2 AR R - AASBEEBER - 25H received from local authorities by the group entities located
BYABRFIVEBNERBA 6 S 1% - RORAG D EE A AR RAAK 78 B B {EfA] in the PRC for eminent contribution and encouragement of
BERM - its business development. These grants are accounted for as
immediate financial support without future related costs to be
incurred and unrelated to any assets.
—E-REF —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEAR R BIRE ST ES 2 W Gain on expired unpresented coupons (Note)
(K& 1,825 16,984
HEYE - BEMREEE Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (2,199) (212)
B 3 W 2 Exchange gains 3,270 3,929
BB R H AR 2 (Loss) gain on disposal of scrap and
(E518) Iz other materials (66) 479
W - R KRB REESE Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment (11,170) (51,308)
R EE R Impairment loss of goodwill (14,838) (5,309)
Hith Others 1,569 2,117
(21,609) (33,320)
fizr: AEERBRETREERAETFIEESSANERTARKE Note: The Group issues and sells coupons to the customers which

RAMBMAREER - RIEEFISEK  AREERBER
BELS ZEEREEHRINRETREZEIRRY

are non-refundable and are redeemed in exchange for

products of the Group within a fixed future period. After the

% AEEIAEEPEOREERETHE2HETH AR
BiRESFREREER 2K -

expiry of the coupons, the Group has no obligation to accept
their redemption by the customers. The amounts represented
the gains recognised upon the release of the coupon liabilities
when the Group considered that all its contractual and
constructive obligations had been fully discharged after taking
into account an additional grace period granted to customers
after expiry.
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRURTEIRE IR THIRR -

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

—RE —E—hF

2016 2015

ARBTT AREETTT

RMB‘000 RMB’'000

EEEH Directors’ remuneration 2,191 2,169

RIRTEFIFT B3R Contribution to retirement benefits schemes 42,785 46,496

Hh 8 T Other staff costs 278,122 307,075

323,098 355,740

ME - BENMREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 66,084 87,640

M A E# Amortization of intangible assets 2,493 1,764

HEME - BERREER Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,199 212

N EHE S Operating lease rentals in respect of

— T fE AR — land use rights 2,113 2,122

—HETEME —rented retail outlets 148,373 175,569

% 25 M 257 B Auditor’s remuneration 2,447 2,496

BRAMAS 2 FEKRA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 495,129 560,532

B[O sHERER Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts - (1,085)
W HE KR EER Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,

BB E plant and equipment 11,170 51,308

HAERRREERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill 14,838 5,309
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() ESREFHTEMS: (@) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments:
e FuEz BUHHTES
Non-
executive
Executive Directors Director  Independent Non-executive Directors
EEZ  HEEe HERe W BEEe ERE Byt o BEX t2h)
Tien-An ~ MingTien  Hung-Sen Dun-Ching ~ Chi-Ming  Haiming Nianlin ~ Wanwen
Lo* Lin** Hsu**  Yulin**  Hung**  Chou Gao Zhu Su Total
ARETn ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARMTn ARETn ARETn AR%Tn
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Z5-NE 2016
FEREMER  Salaries and other benefit 1,236 0 0 0 0 It} 143 143 143 1,79
FBHMEA  Performance related bonus (Note)

(hisk) 400 - - - - - - - - 400
e Total emoluments 1,636 2 2 2 2 ] 143 143 143 2,19
“E-1f 2015
FEOREMER  Salaries and other benefit 1,36 - - 18 8 8 143 143 143 1,769
FRASIL

() Performance related bonus (Note) 400 = = = = = = - = 400
e Total emoluments 1,636 - - 18 3 3 18 18 14 2169
* BRTE * Chief executive
h ML ERFBREER_ZE—REA=ZHR 3% Mr. Ming Tien Lin and Mr. Hung-Sen Hsu were

BEZERPTESE  UBRMELERHABEL appointed executive directors to replace Mr. Yu Lin
Ao and Mr. Dun-Ching Hung from 3 June 2016.
MizE : REBEASEBAARBRTSBAET Note:  The performance related bonus is determined by

LT EEME T EZRRE
IR MER

MEEAKES

reference to the individual performance and market
trend.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their service in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Group.
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ZZT—RF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

EEREFRUTEME - (8) (a)
FRIFRTEZRBUIATESTHES ARERE

EREEE=RERBMER

Eé:%*/—\ﬁ)} T-0%F HEANESH
EMEMES  RNENSEBINE -

RER AEERERNEENNE  (EAR
SIEEMAREBRAINARE B 2 2Rk
TERREREE - RFR - BEEEREEAH

TEREHAL (b)

AEBAERSHFALEE - R(ZE—1
F:—R)ARFBEE  HMSEN LXHE
CHEHBERN - HBWE(ZE—RF  mR)AL

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments: (Cont’d)

The non-executive directors’ and independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their service as directors of the
Group.

No other fees, retirement benefits or other
emoluments have been paid to the directors for
both 2016 and 2015.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during
the year.

Five highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest

emoluments in the Group, one (2015: one) was
director of the Company whose emoluments

ZBEmT are included in the disclosures in note above.
The emoluments of the remaining four (2015:
four) individuals were as follows:

—RE —E—hF
2016 2015
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

e M EAMmER Salaries and other benefits 1,630 1,690

BRREF TR Contribution to retirement benefits schemes 130 129

A& 1~ 3K Share-based payment 53 127

)15 & 3R 3R 65 52 Eh < 51 Discretionary and performance related

(FF3E) incentive payments (Note) 90 90
1,903 2,036
Mgk :  RIBEMIEENRSZEARBE LT SBEEE Note:  The performance related incentive payment

is determined by reference to the individual
performance and market trend.
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

(b) IHEESHFALE)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The five highest paid individuals’ emoluments
were within the following bands:

A
Number of individuals
—E—XRE —E—RF
2016 2015
£ 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 4
1,500,001 7. E 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1

FA - AEERENIRARSHFALINHE
1ERRE BB AR E sk N BB 1R 2 BT s B I AR
B FR EER&HATREREERH

A
Sl

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the five highest paid individuals has
waived any emoluments during the year.

—E—RF —T—hEF

2016 2015

AR%T T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

R EREH ([ EMAER ) PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") 1,745 975
BEFE (BERH) BB (Over) under provision in respect of prior years (130) 35
1,615 1,010

RIER A (FIFE19) Deferred tax (Note 19) 796 1,290
TRIAR S 42 %8 Total tax expense 2,411 2,300

N2 7] Kk Christine International Holdings (BVI) Co., Ltd.
([ Christine BVI ) 1950 A #A % PG 1 2 BISR AL ©

The Company and Christine International Holdings (BVI)
Co., Ltd. (“Christine BVI") are registered in countries
where income tax is exempted.
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HE—

=

o=

HRAREZWALIFELEBRREEE - MIALKRIE
HEBFSTEAE -

RIBH B BERSTOEREEAFBOEB KD - P
BB A RERHER25% °

RIBHBERATOERERGD - A —FT/N\F—H—
B BIIFNBEREE](RETBIRIELEHENL
BT RETBERALEHBEIGH - EAERRAR
RERBISMYEERBE)NREERTEREL
)RR 0 332 1 7 AT R IR K% ) L L e ) B Bl BB 7R
MIBHAREN - EAZEN SR ERETE SR
FUERT - hEHBARXN FRFEEERNT
B IR B ZAR10% 3 K 1 7E B R FAR TR -
it BEREF BB QRS T ERRE AN
STV h B4 -

NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group's income neither arises in nor is derived
from Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT and Implementation
Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate applicable to
the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Under the relevant tax law and implementation
regulations in the PRC, withholding income tax is
applicable to interest or dividends earned and payable
to investors that are “non-tax resident enterprises”,
which do not have an establishment or place of
business in the PRC, or which have such establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or
place of business, in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 to the extent such
interest or dividends have their sources within the PRC.
Under such circumstances, interest or dividends paid
by the PRC subsidiaries to offshore group entities shall
be subject to the withholding income tax at 10% or
a lower treaty rate. Therefore, withholding income
tax has been provided for based on the anticipated
dividends to be paid by the PRC subsidiaries.
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s

FARBX LSS ER 2 HiRMT

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
accounting loss as follows:

—RE —E—hF

2016 2015

ARET T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FrE5 B ES 18 Loss before taxation (118,799) (146,051)
RBAMEAE 2 FIBREY Income tax expense calculated at

(FfE) applicable tax rate (Note) (29,700) (36,513)

T ERB RN BN Effect of expenses that are not deductible in

a7 determining taxable profit 3,718 1,818

BEFE(RRRE) BETE (Over) under provision in respect of prior years (130) 35

AN b R /N b | o2 Effect on share of profit of an associate (117) (95)
RERAIRE RS =582 & Effect of unrecognised deductible

temporary differences 3,629 13,491

RERTIBEIE 2 & Effect of unrecognised tax losses 25,011 23,564

RSP R ZATSHEY Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 2,411 2,300

MizE: FIEBAXERNZREER ZEECEMSBRE25%:T Note:  Income tax expense is basically calculated at the rate of 25%

=1

ARRRFALEIRN - EIRSGEZR T EARS
BREHERETEERRNEARE(ZF—1F
) o

FARsy

BREAREIEBIEFAARREE ABLBERER
T RE+ A=+ BHUFERHE-_ZT—1F
+=A=+—HI1t%/E1,010,188,0000% 2 & 17X (1 5
%to

HE_ZT—RF+-A=+—HIFE  HGEER*
TSN BT A -

which is the statutory EIT rate of the PRC entities.

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during
the year, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2015: Nil).

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
for the year and 1,010,188,000 issued shares for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and year ended 31
December 2015.

There were no potential ordinary shares outstanding
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

TRIAATBIFRER AR A T Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;X8 F % Annual Report 2016



S AR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

s

R=E-1E-A-H

it
a3
i

TE
#2
e

RZB—E
t=A=t-A

ZHERAE

R_E2-1%-F-A

ERRE

heE

NREEDH(E
BB

ERiTE
hE

REGEDRERR

RZE-RF
+-A=1-8

BEFE
RIE—E
+-A=+-R

RZZ-1%
+-A=+-R

Cost

At 1 January 2015
Additions
Transfer

Disposals

At 31 December 2015

Additions
Transfer
Disposals

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 1 January 2015

Depreciation for the year

Disposals

Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss

At 31 December 2015

Depreciation for the year

Disposals

Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss

At 31 December 2016

Net book value
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

—=

—

HENEEE
Leasehold

improvements

ARETT
RMB'000

179,773
17,232
8,349
(9,701)

195,653

11,821
176

207,650

155,521
21,495
(9,701)

1,408

168,723

12,187

11,170

192,080

15,570

26,930

B¥

Buildings
ARETT
RMB000

502,625
20

502,645

261
a1

503,327

137436
31,987

169,423

44,08

213,465

289,862

333222

HBERRE
Machinery
and
equipment
ARETT
RMB'000

420,758
3,053
1,446

(1)

425,146

2133
2,650
(2.867)

421,062

282,071
24,320
©2)

49,626

356,125

3,025
(224)

358,926

68,136

69,021

hE

Motor
vehicles

ARETT
RMB'000

18,468
804

(578)

18,694

268

(1,501)

17461

12,799
1326
(520)

13,605

1214
(1,351)

13,468

3,993

5,089

®ER
BORE
Fixtures
and office
equipment
AREFTL
RMB'000

141,502
1,479
205
(1,156)

142,030

501

(1,248)

141,283

108,547
8,512
(1,021)

274

116,312

5,616
(1,194)

120,734

20,549

25,718

HRIR
Construction-
in-progress

ARETT
RMB'000

74910
23,051
(10,000)

87,961

24,986
(3,247)

109,700

109,700

87,9%!1

Total

ARETT
RMB'000

1,338,036
45,639

(11,546)

1,372,129

39,970

(5,616)

1,406,483

696,574
87,640
(11,334)

51,308
824,188

66,084
(2,769)

11,170

898,673

507,810

547,941
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s

REBHARUATBREAER T —F+_A
=+—HBAAREI IS4 000 (ZE—RF  ARK
11,198,0007T ) Z iEFEUS EREFE -

Eg - BERRBEE ERTERIN EH R
i SRR B AR (51 T 68 PR 4F R A LA IR 51
R -

HEMEERE TAHAsk = F 2 fhEtrRl{E A

FHMER Z2BEE
BF 2.5%-4.5%
BRI R 9%
B 18%
KB RIARE 18%

REEEFANFE 2 i - URBARPEBEORS -

RAFERI ZBEBR

FRN - ARAEBE 2 HERBARNESE  EEEEZ
*%Jﬁi}%&ﬁmmﬁaé?%ﬁiﬁi SNL([REE
Biu)zalE¢RE ZEEERREASECZHE
%%%ﬂk s B BIAREE R ARE - Z2F/X
EBHARRRBERIEARE11,200,000T(=ZF—5
F: AR¥51,300,0007T) - fHEEE 2 /] Ul SFE )
REFAEEET - sT2FABAEMB AR E
ATE13.8%(ZFE—FE : 14.0%) ©

MERBEEF ABEA B ke &S 78E -

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The Group has not obtained the title certificates for
the buildings located in the PRC with carrying amounts
of RMB9,954,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB11,198,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress) are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives after taking into
account their estimated residual value on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the lease
term or estimated useful
lives of three years

Buildings 2.5%-4.5%
Machinery and equipment 9%
Motor vehicles 18%
Fixtures and office equipment 18%

The Group’s buildings are located on land in the PRC
under long and medium-term leases.

Impairment losses recognised in the current
year

During the year, as a result of the poor financial
performance of the Group, the management
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of
manufacturing plant and other related assets of
each cash generating unit (the “CGU"). These assets
includes Group'’s leasehold improvement, machinery
and equipment and fixtures and office equipment.
The review led to the recognition of an impairment
loss of RMB11.2 million (2015: RMB51.3 million). The
recoverable amount of the relevant assets has been
determined on the basis of their value in use. The pre-
tax discount rate used in measuring value in use was
13.8% (2015: 14.0%) per annum.

The impairment losses have been included in profit or
loss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

=EB-RF —FTRF
2016 2015
AR¥F T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
fREE CARRYING AMOUNT
REF] At the beginning of the year 78,318 80,440
F AR Charged for the year (2,113) (2,122)
RER At the end of the year 76,205 78,318
B BRTEFEEARNGRZ Less: Current portion to be charged within
BNERES D (FTAB S K& next year included in trade and other
Hib U EIE) receivables 2,112 2,024
FERNHRER (D Non-current portion 74,093 76,294
RN TR S EHE T - WIRESE The amount represents medium-term operating
MR38ES0F AN - leasehold lands located in the PRC and is amortized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term of 38 to 50

years.
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

2% COST

R-—ZT—FHF—HA—H  At1January 2015

NE Additions

RZE—HF At 31 December 2015
+=-—A=+—8H

NE Additions

RZZE—RF At 31 December 2016
+=-A=+—~H

e AMORTISATION

R—ZE—RF—H—H At 1 January 2015

FANHIBR Charge for the year

RZZE—HF At 31 December 2015
+=—A=+—H

FAHBR Charge for the year

RZZTE—RF At 31 December 2016
+=—A=+—H

FREE CARRYING VALUES

RIZZE—RF At 31 December 2016
+-A=+—H

R-E—RF At 31 December 2015
+=-A=+—H

NEBTZEEEBARAEREN - LEAARRUAT

;i 20%
&L 5%
HERLE 5%

B4 B SHEME &5t
Sales
Software Trademark network Total
AREETTT ARBEFTT AREETTT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
9,354 10,635 5,860 25,849
215 - - 215
9,569 10,635 5,860 26,064
3,351 - - 3,351
12,920 10,635 5,860 29,415
3,325 2,749 1,514 7,588
939 532 293 1,764
4,264 3,281 1,807 9,352
1,668 532 293 2,493
5,932 3,813 2,100 11,845
6,988 6,822 3,760 17,570
5,305 7,354 4,053 16,712

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives
which are amortised on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Software 20%
Trademark 5%
Sales network 5%

TRIAATBIFRER AR A T Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;X8 F % Annual Report 2016



S AR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-RF —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥T T ARBFIT
RMB‘000 RMB*000

BEUTSE RS Deposits for purchase in respect of
— T fE AR ~Land use rights 5,000 5,000
— % - B MRS () — Property, plant and equipment (Note) 21,221 23,259
26,221 28,259
fid: R-B-RFT_A=+RZARBRRARERRLE— Note:  The balance as at 31 December 2016 includes a prepayment

MERRBARIB(—REF| FE2HME220) EHEA
[R¥#18,108,0007t(=Z—H4F : AR¥18,108,0007T) Z K
B UEERE - NAREAY - ERRSNEETE -

of RMB18,108,000 to Shanghai Yi Pin Xuan Foodstuff Co.,
Ltd. ("Yi Pin Xuan”) (a related company, see details in Note
22(a)) for purchase of equipment (2015: RMB18,108,000). At
the date of this report, the above mentioned transactions are
still in progress.

—E-RF —FRF
2016 2015
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2% COST
FHIRFR At the beginning and end of the year 14,838 20,147
BE IMPAIRMENT
RERRFRERIBERE Impairment loss recognised in the year,
and at the end of the year (14,838) (5,309)
BREE CARRYING VALUES - 14,838

ZEFBREREWETINF LR BER AR ([HMF
1) 100% 5 - BN R BEFEZREELS
UZEE RZE—A"F+ZA=+—8 ML
REEACEMZETASHENREYE BB RREN
KR EE ANR30,673,0007C c R - ZE—RNFE+
A=+—8  mNALREeEEEM 2 KRB EE
SHERMMNA LR SESBU 7 IRESEE - Mt - ¥
FAREREEREAR14,838,0007T °

The amount represents the goodwill arose from the
acquisition of 100% interest in Hangzhou Danbi
Food Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Danbi"”), the Hangzhou
Danbi CGU in prior year. The carrying amount of the
Hangzhou Danbi CGU as at 31 December 2016 also
include property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of RMB30,673,000. As at 31 December 2016,
the recoverable amount of the Hangzhou Danbi CGU
is assessed to be lower than the carrying amount of
the Hangzhou Danbi CGU. Thus, an impairment of
goodwill of RMB14,838,000 was recognized in the
year.
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

A E e EER T ZRBEKRMAIT

NSRS EA BN 2 f] KBS ERIEFEBEER

HEFE ﬁf‘%”ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁéi@ﬁfrﬁt/ﬁ/@%ﬂiﬁﬂ
MY BEESLE 2R REEAKR13.8% =3
0 14.0%)FiATERIR =R - ﬁmﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁza@.b%ﬁ
RAERE(ZE—RF  0%)HE - ;HEEREERKZ
HFZEHEFHBEFA S REGETEHR - EFRE
TEEHERMEMNE  ZEGAERINS LIRS E
HEBEMZBARBREEBHMSRE 2 BHMES -

The basis of the recoverable amount and the major
underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of the Hangzhou Danbi
CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a pre-tax discount rate
of 13.8% (2015: 14.0%). The cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using zero growth
rate (2015: 0%). Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculation relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows, including budgeted sales and gross
margin, which is based on the Hangzhou Danbi CGU’s
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

—REF —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥T T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R—EEE N F 2 IEETHIRERA  Cost of unlisted investment in an associate 1,916 1,916
AMEWEE R EF - HBRE WS Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividends received 876 409
2,792 2,325
RZZE—R"ER—_ZT—RAF+=-A=+—8 " F%£E As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group has
VN NC] %ﬁﬁ*& interest in the following associate:
BRI th 26 K2 rEH
BE AR AR B HEfEAR EiERE IEEE

Place and date of

Name of associate establishment

B 235 MEE(_E8) BRAE] A
([ P BB MGE |) —TERF+=A
—+AhH
Aroma Coffee (Shanghai) Co., PRC

Ltd. (“Aroma Coffee") 29 December 2006

138

Attributable
equity interest

Registered capital of the Group  Principal activity

120,000,000 H 25% HEENMIHEDEESR

JPY120,000,000 25%  Producing and selling

coffee products

TRIAATBIFRER AR A T Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;X8 F % Annual Report 2016



n'IT\ A ~ jﬁ%#&%ﬁj
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

ZHERNE B ERBE Summarised financial information of the associate:
—E-RF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARETT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
MENEE Current assets 17,678 13,964
JEMBEE Non-current assets 1,464 2,027
mEAaE Current liabilities (7,973) (6,691)
BEFE Net assets 11,169 9,300
NS E AP FR IS MNGE 2 Proportion of the Group’s ownership
Ffr A e mEzs LE (7 interest in Aroma Coffee 25% 25%
755 (B A PR R IS N TE 2. Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
= RE (A Aroma Coffee 2,792 2,325
BZE #H=
—E—RF —E—hF
t=A=+—-8A +ZA=t—H
ILEE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAE= Revenue for the year 27,384 31,806
F N Profit for the year 1,871 1,526
KEBDGZIEE NG Z Group's share of profit of the associate
F XA for the year 467 382
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

REFERBEFE CRRBREIBELEHIBEE(R

B RABREBIT

RZZ-RF-A—H At1lanuay 2015
RAEEHABER  (Charge) credit to consolidated
H2EWARESR  statement of profitorloss and

(B )zEA other comprehensive income
for the year
R-E-1% At 31 December 2015
tZA=t-R

RAERFARER  (Charge) credit to consolidated
H2EWARED  statement of profit orloss and

(HIB3EA other comprehensive income
for the year
RIZ—RF At 31 December 2016
tZA=1-AR

RARER
BB

Withholding
taxon
undistributed
profits
ARETT
RMB'000
(21,910)

(21910

(21,910)

FR1E 53 & i ZRAETRIB AR DT AT

ERETRIRE E
ERETIREE

EIEEEf

Revaluation
of intangible
assets
ARETT
RMB'000
(3,058)

206

(285)

206

(2,646)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

The following are the major deferred taxation assets
(liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during
the current and prior years:

BARURA
TRER

Bad debt
provision
of trade
receivables
ARETT
RMB'000

370

(270)

100

0% RE
E
IRER

Temporary
differences

of property,
plant and
equipment
ARETT
RMB'000
1122

531

1,653

300

1,953

BRIEER
Eit1&z
ERER
Temporary
differences
of sales
recognised
and payroll
accruals
ARETT
RMB'000

1274

(1,650)

5624

(1,326)

4,298

RERER

Unrealised
profit
ARETT
RMB'000
236

(107)

U

153

ERRER

Taxable
losses
ARETT
RMB'000

18,003

18,003

18,003

2

Total

ARRTT
RMB000

2,037

(1,290

147

(79)

(49)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

TRIAATBIFRER AR A T Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;X8 F % Annual Report 2016

—RE

2016
AR®T R
RMB‘000

24,092
(24,141)

(49)

—h%F
2015

AREET T

RMB'000

25,001
(24,254)
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—RNFEt+-_A=+—BzZXxSHEHE
BB A AREA483,095000t(—ZT—HF : ARK
384,199,0007T ) + AJ AR EF - ERBBAE
BERELEHBEEEARK72,014000T(ZE—H
F+-_A=+—H: AR¥72,014,0007T) ° B HE
EIEMS B2 R MREFRIR - B ERGRT AR
411,081,000 THERELERIBEE(ZT—HF : AR
MMZWSwmw c REBMBEEBRER - —tF=

AEER=F

—E-—FERET

F45 Year

ZE—RF 2016

—T—tF 2017

- n\& 2018
—E—hE 2019

—E-FTF 2020

—E-—%F 2021

RZEBE—RNER_ZT—h1F  XEEVESHBTAH

THE18 ©

RZE—R"E+ZA=+—8  A&5EKE LKZRETT

ENOREZ TR LR ETE A AR 139,567,000
(ZZ—F.F : AR¥125,052,0007T) @ Al{EHKEE AR R
A e AREATEME TR Z AR BFIRR - s
WRIELEIEEE ©

NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The Group has unutilised tax losses of
RMB483,095,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB384,199,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB72,014,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB72,014,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of the remaining
RMB411,081,000 (2015: RMB312,185,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams of the
respective entities. The tax losses will expire from 2017
t0 2021 as follows:

=F—RF —FT0F
2016 2015
AR®TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
- 880

673 673
79,300 79,300
137,078 137,078
94,254 94,254
99,776 -
411,081 312,185

The Group has not utilised any tax losses in 2016 and
2015.

The Group has deductible temporary differences
of RMB139,567,000 (2015: RMB125,052,000) in
respect of depreciation and impairment of plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2016 available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams of the respective entities.
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BIBCEMEHRE B -ZEEN\FE—A—H# $EF
Bt J&8 2~ &) Bt BT R BN 2 v B 2R A% B I 75 44N TR 40
i o ARASEE LG TR EREBERR  mMERE
BRI RASRRAI e T RE - AT ER =T —X
F+- A=+ BHEMBRRRBEFEG 2L
ZEEAH ARE315,456,000( —T—FHF : ARK
311,248,0007T ) R i F 0 15 ek R E L IR E R TR B4 ©

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
No deferred taxation has been provided in these
financial statements in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to the retained profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB315,456,000 (2015: RMB311,248,000) as at 31
December 2016 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of such temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

—RE —E—hF

2016 2015

ARET T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

B Raw materials 18,117 17,027
BIRK SR Finished goods 10,464 12,259
28,581 29,286

=F—RF —TRF

2016 2015

AR¥TF T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

B 5 EIE Trade receivables 12,996 17,172
T REREE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (394) (394)
12,602 16,778

[ L FE P B K Advance to suppliers 3,523 4,828
T R TERE 2 FENTRERIE Prepaid lease payments for land and retail outlets 41,091 45,794
JEREA Prepaid expenses 523 207
Ho A e R IE Other receivables 4,798 6,526
62,537 74,133
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TXARSHRERRE ZREFR (IR RERE)
REZ A RS

AR Age

0E30K 0 to 30 days
31260K 31 to 60 days
61£290K 61 to 90 days
91E 180K 91 to 180 days
BB 180K Over 180 days

AEBEZESREFTEIZREEBERHE BT R
REHERBETH A -

REBMABMHEENRSEITHHBFTENTIE - 1
AEBEETEMEEENASEERTEEER -
REEEEREMZTEMEZHEMBRE—MKTD
HBEEREREMEERE HE30E 60K AR 2
NFALE - HERSEEEREAREICAAN  Be
HEEEAREITHEE I E BHES TS RIEL R
FALEE -

NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based
on the invoiced date at the end of each reporting
period:

=F—RF —FTRF
2016 2015
AR®TR AREFTT
RMB‘000 RMB'000
10,695 12,338
210 348

39 381

1,250 3,205

51 506
12,602 16,778

The Group's trade receivables are mainly due from
department stores, supermarkets and cash consumer
card issuers.

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in cash or
prepaid by the customers. There is no credit period
for direct sales of the Group’s products from the
self-owned retail outlets. Sales proceeds from retail
outlets which are located in department stores and
supermarkets are normally collected and paid to the
Group by the department stores and supermarkets
within 30 to 60 days after the sales of the products.
Sales proceeds from cash consumer card are collected
and paid to the Group by the cash consumer card issuers
within 30 days after the sales of the products.
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AEEBEREERBERAEHE B RESHE
RETHZERARR - ARZERERE - BT R
REHBERBETHEERIFEEASEFRIA (ER
F MAEEERERRASEYEAREANGEER

@ o
AA

ANEFEESBEWRRBESHBER-_Z—<E+=-A
:+—H%ﬁﬁ&ﬁAEMwwpwm2%W%E
(ZZ—H%F : ARM4,100,0007T) - P& HEH -
ZEDECDAE  ASER AR EELRESIER
o AEERAZSEWKFUERFURE - AE@IE
MR EERTEEAERR -

TXREBHERREZE S RKTIRZ R

BRHe Age
61290k 61 to 90 days

91E 180K
E#iE180K

91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The Group will monitor and review the credit
conditions of the department stores, supermarkets
and cash consumer card issuers on a timely basis. The
Group’s management considers that the Group has
no significant credit risks because those department
stores, supermarkets and cash consumer card issuers
have good reputation and long term relationship with
the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB1.7 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB4.1 million), which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group considers these receivables
can be collected. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The following is the aging of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired:

—REE —T—RF
2016 2015
AR¥ETT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
396 381

1,250 3,205

51 506

1,697 4,092
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

REEEBHE &) - Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
— N —ET—RHF
2016 2015
ARET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FH] Beginning of the year 394 1,479
T AB S 2 B Credited to profit or loss = (1,085)
FR End of the year 394 394
(a Brire VSRR EMM T E 2 &R - K (a) In addition to information disclosed elsewhere
SEBEEREEAT ZBERET in the consolidated financial statements, the

relationships between the Group and its related
parties are as follows:

=t BEARDR 2 @HFR
Name Relationship with the Company
— ¥ HARBESERAT AR GERRBEEEF ATz R
Yi Pin Xuan A company controlled by Ms. Ching-Ying Huang Lo, who is a close member
of the family of Mr. Tien-An Lo, director of the Company
Christine Princess Co., (PTC) Ltd. NERFRAREREBREEFEARRIREZETAT
([ Christine Princess )
Christine Princess Co., (PTC) Ltd. A trust company holding equity interest in the Company on trust for the
(" Christine Princess”) benefit of management employees.
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(b) RERR AREEZ@EEA T OREE
3NN
—GhEF Yi Pin Xuan

Christine Princess Christine Princess

AEBE—REFZEHRAHERNZE ZEEEUGR
ARRBRE ZBNFOR - EEHR30REKER30
RUARA -

RZZE—RNERZFT—RAF+-A=1+—8 ' 58
EAChristine PrincessZ &8 B AIEE HIHE

REFE—R"F+-_A=+—8  ZRHIBITTAAR
#52,390,000C(ZZ—FHF : AR¥51,700,0007T)
FERRITERBRBRTERBINR - ——F+=A4
ZHEHBEM 2 ROIMEREITIRES 2B o

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

(b) As at the end of the reporting period, the
Group has outstanding balances with the
related parties as follows:

KRR FARSREEEHE

Maximum amount

Balance outstanding during the year
—E—RE —ZT—HF —E—RE —E-RE
2016 2015 2016 2015
ARBT T AR¥TT ARMTT AREETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
10,663 4,782 11,098 44,315
212 147 212 147
10,875 4,929

The balance with Yi Pin Xuan was trade-related
receivables for sales of materials with a credit period
of 30 days and prepayment for purchase of goods and
was aged within 30 days.

The balance with Christine Princess as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 were non-trade in nature.

As at 31 December 2016, the restricted bank deposits
amounting to RMB52,390,000 (2015: RMB51,700,000)
are placed to bank as security for coupons issued
to customers according to the regulation issued by
Ministry of Commerce of the PRC on 27 December
2012.

TRIAATBIFRER AR A T Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— ;X8 F % Annual Report 2016



e ISR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bz

o=

L5

NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-RF “T-RF

2016 2015

AR¥F T ARETTT

RMB‘000 RMB'000

FLETEEREES Unlisted managed investment fund 35,000 35,000

BEHELAREREFHIRTEETHEERARNE
T ZERREMIEESRAETEIMIE - REW
BHEBRRTFI12E - REK A B REHRARE
SHFREES - XINERBEE °

RITESREBRSERRERRIABE B =([EAHAR
ZIEHITER -

RIBE—RNF+-A=+—H BIEHKELEN
T035%%2%(ZZF—FHF : 0.35%£3.30%) 25
FREEE o

The debt instrument investment represent fund placed
into certain licensed trust company in the PRC, which
in turn placed the fund in certain overseas investment.
The investment carries expected return of 12% per
annum. The investment will mature within one year
from the end of the current reporting period and are
presented as a current asset.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less.

Bank balances and cash carry interest at market rates
ranging from 0.35% to 2% (2015: 0.35% to 3.30%)
per annum at 31 December 2016.

ZEB-RF —E—TF

2016 2015

AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB‘000 RMB’000

B SN RIA Trade payables 53,183 56,424

B TE REF Payroll and welfare payable 17,780 23,679

H A e R E Other tax payable 34,961 2,379

FEfTRIRE Pension payable 2,559 2,883

HAbfE T RIE R EE A Other payables and accruals 32,563 29,116
WEEIZE ~ BB R Payables for acquisition of property,

FERTERIR plant and equipment 11,655 6,987

152,701 121,468
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HER—RETAEEISZOREEH - REWEH
N *ETJ?;-%T*\EﬁﬂzﬁUZfﬁ%ﬁ’éﬁﬁmlﬁzﬁEu PaRitl
T

IR Age

0F45K 0 to 45 days
46 260K 46 to 60 days
61F90K 61 to 90 days
91E 180K 91 to 180 days
BB 180K Over 180 days

REREEF  RZZ—AF+-A=+—H0 LA
R #457,353,0007t( —Z—RF : AR%489,041,000
T RRES(BERERESRBEN R BE  &F
HEAASENBEMEEIRES CHE - ZFRE
FRELRTEAE  TRBRERANLRAEEER
FratfEl e - AN EBE AN RETEEREME
LTYBEEZBEINEHRAASCBRERERSEME
A BREEHFEEN  BRESHRBEETZERERT
g2 ARIEWTEN SRR ETMEm 2 BAARS ©

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

The Group normally is allowed a credit term of 45 to 60
days by its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade payables presented based on the invoiced date
at the end of the reporting period:

—E—REF —E—hF
2016 2015
AR®BTT ARETT
RMB‘000 RMB'000
48,083 50,504
4,028 5,033

119 352

21 =

932 535
53,183 56,424

Among the deposit from customers, there
were approximately RMB457,353,000 (2015:
RMB489,041,000) of coupon (including paper coupon
and pre-paid card) liabilities as at 31 December 2016,
which represented the balances of the coupons
issued and sold to the customers by the Group. Those
coupons are recorded as liabilities when sold and
released as revenue when redeemed by the customers
in exchange for products of the Group, or recognised
as other income after all contractual and constructive
obligations of the Group have been discharged after
taking into account an additional grace period granted
to customers after expiry. Other than coupon liabilities,
the remaining balance of deposit from customers
primarily represented the prepayment received from
corporates for bulk purchases and deposits from
individuals for made-to-order products.
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

(a) BRIAMR A ﬁi‘&*&%ﬁ@mﬁﬁﬁﬁgg,zgﬂ% , (@) In addition to information disclosed elsewhere
AEEEEMBAR ZBEDT : in the consolidated financial statements, the

relationships between the Group and its related
parties are as follows:

=L BEARNE ZHE

Name Relationship with the Company
EEXRESERART(TRED(HE) HEIHIBREERSZA

Shanghai Meixin Trade Co., Ltd. A company controlled by a dlrector, Mr. Dun-Ching Hung

(“Meixin") (Note)

RIHHEEEMBRAR(IRIEE]) BEFERALERERGEES 2D
Waujiang Shangpu Packaging Products A company controlled by a director, Mr. Chi-l\/ling Chou and his family
Co., Ltd. (“Wujiang Shangpu”)

RIEEZER AR (TR (HEE) MESHBUEREMERKEHZA

Tongcan Trade Limited Company A company controlled by a director, Mr. Dun—Ching Hung and his family
("Tongcan”) (Note)

EEREREMBERAR ([ LERE]) HEZFRREEREFKENZA

Shanghai HongDa Decorations and A company controlled by a director, l\/Ir. Hung-Sen Hsu and his family
Packaging Company (“Shanghai
HongDa")

PIEEEEIEE( ) BRA A B RAAATIFE25% KM 2 A A
([P SR H5 00k 1)

Aroma Coffee (Shanghai) Co., Ltd A company 25% shares owned by Christine

(“Aroma Coffee”)

Mzt : EBRAKE-Z—AFAAZHEEBELEE Note:  Meixin and Tongcan ceased to be related parties of
THRASEEFER)ETEANKEZHEA the Group since 3 June 2016 when Mr. Dun-Ching
T Hung was no longer the director of the Group.

T —NFFEF Annual Report 2016 TFI#45T BIFR =R AR A 7 Christine International Holdings Limited

149



150

e PR AR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

() RIEMR AEFEREEEALZAREE

BRIAT :

ES Meixin

—mEf Yi Pin Xuan
RITwH Wauijiang Shangpu
Gifed Tongcan

P] B2 Z5 00 L Aroma Coffee
EEsE Shanghai HongDa

BRRESNE - EEHNFIASRE60RZME ° AT
7%)5/\% HEMRENEERRFEZ KRB

BRER Age

0E45K 0 to 45 days
46 260K 46 to 60 days
61£290K 61 to 90 days
91 180k 91 to 180 days
HBiE180K Over 180 days
KAt Total

TRASTEBRIZER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z—

(b) As at the end of the reporting period, the
Group has outstanding balances with the
related parties as follows:

—E—REF —E—hF
2016 2015
AR®BTT ARETT
RMB‘000 RMB'000
- 3,817

= 1,049

1,588 1,237

= 2,060

772 34

1,284 =
3,644 8,197

The balances are trade in nature with a credit term
ranging from 45 days to 60 days. The following is an
aged analysis of amounts due to related companies at
the end of each reporting period.

—E—REF —E—hF
2016 2015
AR®BT T AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
3,631 6,124

2 2,054

11 19

3,644 8,197
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

BIEEWHF BN AEE—BM2EHBARNR=

—ZF AEEFBAAREE,245,000 T AR EE
EREHREMEX A MBX - @EPEpESE
FETREREREXN BB 2 2ELIAR1,342,000

TERFBRESE - T——F+-_A=+—HIE
EZIBE PR - s7%8 AR 4,903,000 BIEIE © I

BREMEERFRFHANEEEPHER - HARE
468,000 EREE_TE—"NF+_A=1+—HIFE
FFABE(ZZE—RF : AR¥S506,0007T) °

Pursuant to a notice from the local government, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group was granted a
subsidy of approximately RMB6,245,000 in April 2010
in order to compensate for the expenditures and losses
arising from the dismantlement and relocation of the
plant. Approximately RMB1,342,000 of the subsidy
that relates to the compensation of suspension of
operation and decoration cost of the old plant was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31

December 2011 upon dismantlement and relocation.
The remaining RMB4,903,000 has been deferred and
would be recognised in profits or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. Approximately RMB468,000
(2015: RMB506,000) has been released to profit and
loss during the year ended 31 December 2016.

RHEE

Number

of shares
—E-RER
—E—h%E
2016 & 2015

TR
‘000

JEE Authorised

FH R FFR0.00001757T At beginning and end of year at HK$0.00001 10,000,000

RHEE
Number

of shares
—EB-RER
—E—H%F
2016 & 2015

IR

Share capital
—~ER
—E—hfF
2016 & 2015
ARBFT
RMB’000

B ETRHE Issued and fully paid
FYIRFREGIMEE0.00001% 7T At beginning and end of year

at HK$0.00001 each 1,010,188,000 8
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MARRIHHA S ——F-_A+HZBRERMF
i BRAFBEERRG EENEE ([ RA RS
FERAREERBRETS ([BRETE D ERR
FIRXE Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd. ([Christine
Princess ) R T ——F+ A -+t BHEKRIKR
e REZFHE G AEREATETERE ZER -
W EN R ER R R AASEBEEL TR o Bk =BT S
N BERGHEST 203% K Christine PrincessiS AT AN A 72 IR
ERDERTRMERSIRBRETSZEERS
EAE o

a) R{PEREE

EWR RZZE—=F—HF+/\H ' Christine
Princessfi#%6,375,000 A A R A 3 E R
BRI REET SRR T A EKES - BRERD
RENGFTEITER R 2 REHA IR E ABaT
AE=E - EULEIR - AR ATNSHESIAE
fth 5 R IRIE SRR - ERE RN BEEE
HERT R BB B EEFEZ25% °

REEBSERARIR - SFRNMEEEAETE
Z D AFEAT,276,0008 T (HHERARE
5,923,0007T) ©

BHE_Z—XRE+-_A=+—HIEE K&
BY R BHEBRDMERTMAEAL(ZE—A
&£ AR#20,0007T) °

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

As detailed in prospectus of the Company dated 10
February 2012, a pre-IPO share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) and a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”) were approved
and adopted by Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd.
(“Christine Princess”), a shareholder of the Company,
on 27 December 2011. The schemes have been
granted to recognise and acknowledge the contribution
of certain employees and to encourage their future
contribution to the Group. The Share Award Scheme
and Share Option Scheme would involve the transfer
of existing shares held by Christine Princess in the
Company to eligible participants under the Share
Award Scheme and the Share Option Scheme.

a) Share Award Scheme

Prior to the Listing, on 18 January 2012,
6,375,000 existing shares of the Company
held by Christine Princess were awarded to
the eligible employees under the Share Award
Scheme. The shares awarded under the Share
Award Scheme are subject to a lock-up period
of three years commencing from the date of
award during which the grantee shall not sell
or otherwise dispose of the awarded shares,
with a transfer price of 25% of the last audited
net asset value per share immediately before
the date of award.

The fair values of the shares determined at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing
model were HK$7,276,000 (equivalent to
RMBS5,923,000).

The Group did not recognise any expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB20,000) in relation to share award granted.
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b)

ZZT—RF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRESE

[F B A 22 8 Christine Princess Ff 3% & 1t
17,003,200 8 A RIIR B Bk (7 2 FE AR A AR I g
RAEFTEIE T A EKES - RIBEAERTBIFT
BRHEREy EERAEREEEERER D
EHBTARRF - FILHE  mARARE
ZHERESNEEBSHE M@  F=/ £
ERFEREEFBSHEB25% @ WAl NEHEF
HEARBRT — T T{E o

REHASHERA-EAENETE Z2RHD M
A& HE A T {E 514,039,000 7T (FHE R A BRI
11,428,0007T) ©

b)

Share Option Scheme

On the same date, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 17,003,200 existing shares of
the Company held by Christine Princess were
granted to the eligible employees under the
Share Option Scheme. The options subject
to the Share Option Scheme are subject to a
vesting period of five years commencing from
the date of grant of such options during which
25% of the options granted to a grantee
will vest on each of the second, third, fourth
and fifth anniversary of the date of grant
and be exercisable within one year from such
anniversary.

The fair values of the shares and options
determined at the date of grant using the
Binomial model were HK$14,039,000
(equivalent to RMB11,428,000).
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b)

—ZT—R"HF+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRESHE (E) b)

TRINFAREER & AT A R R iR IR

R—HA—BEARITE
FRRY

Outstanding as at 1 January
Forfeited during the year

BEt Total

AR EBEREAFEZHRRET

—E——F

AE

2012A

RHBEBZRE 1.607 7T
Grant date share price HK$1.60
7B 0.807 7T
Exercise price HK$0.80
B 2
Option life 2 years

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

The table below discloses the movement of the
Company’s share options held by the Group's
employees:

BREHE
Number of share options
—E—RF —E-TF
2016 2015
TR TR
‘000 ‘000
7,352 10,991
(3,171) (3,639)
4,181 7,352

The following assumptions were used to
calculate the fair value of share options:

BRSS!

Option type
—EB——F —EB——fF -
B (@] D
2012B 2012C 2012D
1.60%7T 1.60% 7T 1.60% 7T
HK$1.60 HK$1.60 HK$1.60
0.80/8 7T 0.80787T 0.80787T
HK$0.80 HK$0.80 HK$0.80
3%F 4 54
3 years 4 years 5 years
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

b) IBIRRERTEI(8) b) Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
TERBEZBERERENFTAMBZAR B E 2 The following table discloses movements of the
& o Company'’s share options held by employees

during the year.

BREHE

Number of options
R-B—XRE
RIB—XRF +=A
—A—H =t+—H
i RATHE FRFEH FRTRE FRRK 18§ RATE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
as at during during during as at

1/1/2016 the year the year theyear  31/12/2016

ks - Option Type:
—T—_FBJE 20128 2,450,698 - - 2,450,698 -
—E-—FCHE 2012C 2,450,698 - - 360,319 2,090,379
—ET—-—FDJE 2012D 2,450,698 - - 360,319 2,090,379
7,352,094 - - 3,171,336 4,180,758
RERITE Exercisable at the end
of the year 2,090,379
INEF15 Weighted average TEA RiERE
TEEGET) exercise price (HK$) 0.8 N/A N/A 0.8 0.8
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

b)

IBIRAERTEI(8)
TEREBEREREREFMBFAAEREZZ
& o
R-ZZE—ARF
—A—AR
MARTTE
Outstanding
as at
1/1/2015
Rk - Option Type:
TN 2012A 2,747,747
—TE—_%BfE 20128 2,747,747
—T——FCH 2012C 2,747,747
—ZT——45DH 2012D 2,747,747
10,990,988
RERTTE Exercisable at the end
of the year
R Weighted average exercise
IEEET) price (HK$) 0.8

BE-_Z—XRF+-_A=+—HIEEE &
SEEHEBERERIAFRIBABEARE
336,0007T(—ZF—F4F : AR¥936,0007T) °

FRRE
Granted
during
the year

NER

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

The following table discloses movements of the
Company's share options held by employees
during prior year.

BREHE
Number of options

RZZE—RF
+=-A
=+—H
FRITE FRRUR RIARTTEE
Exercised Forfeited ~ Outstanding
during during as at
the year theyear  31/12/2015
= = 2,747,747 =
= = 297,049 2,450,698
- — 297,049 2,450,698
- - 297,049 2,450,698
- — 3,638,894 7,352,094
2,450,698

NiE M
N/A N/A 0.8 0.8

The Group recognised the total expenses of
RMB336,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB936,000) in relation to share
options granted.
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

REBEREBEA

FARBREHEREE
ZEMEXNZHEBENK
during the year

Contingent rentals

ETREzREMeREERBRESIIRHEERTHE
ZEEPZBREHEETE - REEHR - AEEBRET
REEEHEANATHRARBETEPIEN
ZARRRERENRAT

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments made in respect of
rented retail outlets under operating leases

—E-RE —E-TF
2016 2015
AR¥T ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB000
147,700 174,288
674 1,281
148,374 175,569

The operating lease rentals of certain outlet stores
are determined based on the higher of a minimum
guaranteed rental or a rate based on sales. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group was committed to
make the following future minimum lease payments in
respect of rented retail outlets under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

—E—-REF —ET—hF

2016 2015

AR¥T T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 37,954 73,800
F_EENF(RREEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 83,062 135,635
HELAIE After five years 8,528 15,708
129,544 225,143

FHEEAREEEANES - U ANBERAEEEE
ETEEMEENZIAEE - —RWME - ZFRA
HERMEELER2ZRBPIE 2 EXRTHE - B
hETBREN AR BL T ERT o

The above lease commitments represent basic rents
only and do not include contingent rents payable in
respect of certain retail outlets leased by the Group.
In general, these contingent rents are calculated with
reference to the turnover of relevant outlets using pre-
determined rate. It is not practicable to estimate in
advance the amount of such contingent rent payable.
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

RAEBESEEA

FR - AEBE—REFT A AL (M E37(a)) BTk
BzHeWABARKE1,080,000c(ZE—HF : A
R #51,080,0007T) ©

RI|EMR - ARE D BAT THIRRKERE N
AR :

The Group as lessor

Rental income earned by the Group from sub-lease
arrangement with Yi Pin Xuan (Note 37(a)) during the
year was RMB 1,080,000 (2015: RMB1,080,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

—RE —E-AF
2016 2015
ARETT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FR Within one year 1,080 1,080
E_ZERF(BEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive = 1,080
1,080 2,160
—RE —E-AF
2016 2015
AR¥F T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB‘'000
BRIAMERIERE WIS H®E5h Capital expenditure contracted for but not
BEBEDE - BER provided in the consolidated financial
B BRI statements in respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 14,108 21,919

RREHR - AEELBEEARAREIE -

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.
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HE—

=

o=

FENBAGRZEEHATRABMEEZERERER
REFFEIKE - FEMBARERESF KRN ZIE
TE B L RRAEMNG SIEL R - UAEBERFIR
HES - REBERKEF 82 —ETNAED
BEZER -RZZE—RE+-A=1+—8  HEAH
2 FERHRIRE R B 5 UA AR 2,559,000 (=
T—HF : AR¥2,883,0007T) °

AEBERHEBEAUBRRASEE TS EREIHE
ge - MR EBBRCERMESERIRERA
O - BEFE - AEBZBERRENEZD A&
B2 EANRBERREBRARTEE ANEHRR (B
BEETRA - BERRERN)

AEBEREGREEHMEARE - (FREMES—
iy EREEBREARAREGBSRERNZEAR
AEBEEEMBERMNBE  BTHREETES
(HFER) FEEERERRE -

NE+ZA=+—HBILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

Employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the specified contributions. As at 31 December 2016,
the outstanding payable for retirement benefit scheme
contributions amounted to RMB2,559,000 (2015:
RMB2,883,000).

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
earnings.

The Group’'s management reviews the capital
structure on a timely basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group’s
management will balance its overall capital structure
through payment of dividend, new share issues and the
issue of debt if necessary.
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

(a)

(b)

SRITEER

ETREE
SRR ERRAE(BRRE M
ReFHEY)

AP ERE
s@Mas Financial liabilities
BSHA AN Amortised cost

MERBEEEERBE

AEBZT2SRMTABRE S REMBUYR
B HEre  |ROEHLES - XRHIRT
T AAHHESREE B5REMENK
BEREW(EM) BEQARRBERENRE « %
FERMTAZFBENBRBMERE - TXHT
HZETHTAEAR 2 ARSI E % E
RZBR BEEEHZERRETEENRE
7 AREREESARE RBRZ TABIEEE
faht °

FRE

AEEAEZNERRER - REASREEL
EASERMEE BEGRITERRKIN - BE
NMEZHE I EHAEB I EEELEAY
2 FRA/AREEZFRRITHESKEEMESH
BEDBEIEE - At - WE25IF KGR
EDHT

Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash and
cash equivalents)

(a)

Available-for-sales investments

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

=EF—RF —FRF
2016 2015
AR®TR AREETT
RMB‘000 RMB'000
549,770 674,312
35,000 35,000
92,257 92,162

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include trade and other receivables, rental
deposit, bank balances and cash, restricted
bank deposits, available-for-sale financial
assets, trade and other payables and amounts
due from (to) related companies and dividend
payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group has limited exposure to interest rate
risk because the Group has no interest-bearing
financial assets/liabilities other than bank
balances. The future variations in interest rates
will not have a significant impact on the results
of the Group, as the Group’s variable-rate bank
balances are all short-term in nature. Therefore,
no interest rate sensitivity analysis is presented.
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Bz

(b)

ZZT—RF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

B EMETE B R ()

B EE

REBAEZINERR T ERREBIABTTA
fEZfETT,Z BREL © BRIABTTAHEZRITH
G Eﬁgﬁiﬁiﬁﬁiﬁlﬁu%ﬁ%uﬂﬁz{{
ﬁﬁ@iéﬁgééﬁﬁﬁ g

RZZT—XRE+_A=+—8 XEENUET
FHEZ RITAMIRAEEL A AR 47,368,000
T(ZE—RF : AR¥A47,007,0007T) ©

AEE B A EINEEREREK - BEARBES
HONERBAETEYEE  IRNFERZE
B ARINERR -

AGPREDFAREBH R AR ETT

BEREZES%(ZT—0%F : 5%) BUKRE
F2 B 32 4 T NI BE R 5 T2 T B B B O R

ft - MREDIERBBEZREHRAINSE
B HAEEE®IER (fEi?&EﬁEIE H R (A
FEMRER) - MARBEBETABEIRE
5%(=F—HF :5%) - REEEE/FEM
WA ARKE2,368,0007T(— T —FF : AR
2,350,0007T) °

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk
is arising mainly from the bank balances of the
Group which are denominated in HK$. Except
for the bank balances denominated in HK$, the
group entities did not have any other monetary
assets or liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank
balances that are denominated in HK$ as
at 31 December 2016 are approximately
RMB47,368,000 (2015: RMB47,007,000).

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy but the directors of the
Company monitor foreign exchange exposure
by closely monitoring the foreign exchange risk
profile and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

This sensitivity analysis details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2015:5%) increase and
decrease in RMB against HK$ which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary
items as at the end of reporting period assuming
they were outstanding for the entire year.
There will be an increase/decrease in post-tax
loss of RMB2,368,000 (2015: RMB2,350,000)
where RMB strengthen/weaken 5% (2015: 5%)
against HK$.
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==

(b)

T—F+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

MBEREEEFERBEERE)

FERE

AEBRHF I RERTEEERAKEESL
MBEREMAR 2&SEERRIREHFAME
RRR D HIFER 2 2B EEREE

REBERMHHEAR S HETTRN T
7 AEEZESEREFAIZSEKAER
ERBREHERBEITH A -

AEEREEEEENECAERELRS
HEBERBEITRZERMR « 1o REBZH
fEEREEREREEMENRR 2HER
& o ARBERIRE HIRRET H A& TR LK
B2 AW EEER - LR T AT E SR
RIBERE - L5  ARAREERAS
KEBZEERBGUAKREBREE - 58 85K
MRPIREREHBREREREEG(E) - B
TRASEEEERBBERR LB ER
BRI MBS -

RAEEE e RAERBITRBEL Y EE
RRME - ARRSHFHACREEZ B
F1T - AlAEEAREXSHFROZ EE
RERAR -

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in
cash or prepaid by the customers. The Group'’s
trade receivables are primarily due from
department stores and cash consumer card
issuers.

The Group will closely monitor and review the
credit conditions of the department stores and
cash consumer card issuers on a timely basis.
In addition, the Group’s other receivables
primarily consist of rental deposits which have
a low risk of default. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual other
receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
The amounts presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position are net of
allowances for doubtful receivables, if any,
estimated by the Group’s management based
on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment.

With respect to credit risk arising from the
other financial assets and bank balances of
the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from the default of counterparties is
limited as the counterparties are state-owned
banks located in the PRC.
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Bz

(b)

ZZT—RF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

MBEREEEFERBERE)

EEmE(E)

AEBFRREHBTZRBECHEETEE
R - AT - RITEBRZEERRER - RE
ARBNZZEFREBRFRLARFE
B AR 8RT -

AEEYEEMEACEERRETER 8
RBABREER5HF MER

REBES M

EZgREACERDERRB I HEREE M
EEgREY —AeE2nBE R ERIE
R AUEBEAEEREN FHERAESR
MBECBERR - AEBBRBRF/TT 2
- RIOTEEARBEHEARERESRE
EITER  EUTERBESAR °

RBEERASERE

)

TREVAEBRREAREENTESRAE
ZEETAKEIEA - Ti@ﬁ$ﬁl792
R =RAEGFEceRBERURES
SR -

JFE

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks. However, the credit risk on bank
balances is limited because the majority of the
counterparties are banks with good reputation
and/or good credit rating.

The Group has no other significant concentration
of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group's short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities, and by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non
derivative financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay.
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HEZZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

(b) BIBEMBREEAERBKEE) (b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)
TEHEESRIERERKR(E) Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont'd)
e FERY N3]
BRNZE  HMMEAR 12388 3ERE1E  RENAE AE
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  orless than 3months undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months tolyear  cashflows  amount

% ARBTRT ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RZB-RE+ZA=+-R  31December 2016

FirEeRas Non-derivative financial liabilities
BSREMENTE Trade and other payables T
N/A 83,905 - - 83,905 83,905
ERERAANE Amount due to related companies TEA
N/A 3,644 - - 3,644 3,644
ERE Dividend payable FEH
N/A 4,708 - - 4,708 4,708
92,257 - - 92,257 92,257
RZE-RE+-A=1-A  31December 2015
FTEEHEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
EHREENTE Trade and other payables TER
N/A 79,257 - - 19,257 79,257
EREERTTE Amount due to related companies TER
N/A 8,197 - - 8,197 8,197
FEfRE Dividend payable TER
N/A 4,708 - - 4,708 4,708
92,162 - - 92,162 92,162
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HE—

(c)

T—NF+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

EMITAZAFHE

AEBEHHSREEREHERRBATET
8 - TRE#ABRBATEL B0EAKE
MATBERENTEE RS REEY ATE
CRRIRAEANEERTRBALKE) - A
TIEEFES 2 ATERBIKT(—E=H)
ZHEK -

(0 Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements
are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

AVEHBER/
SRER WT5IRHNATE ATERE  HEHORTIEAAUE
Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/

Financial item Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key inputs
R=B-7& RZB-I%
t=R=t-A t=A=t-A
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
ARBT T ARET R
RMB'000 RMB'000

R ESRERE Available-for-sales financial 35,000 35,000 FHR DERBERE - ARBLRENRER

assets level2  BEBERGE o

BREHERASIRZEREEREBRBEIQF
ERBENEARSARENMIAREER
A ERENTMSAERERSZEBIREE -

EEZRA  NREMBHRRANZEHEKATIR
ZEREERERABEREEELQFER

St

= o

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on expected return of
the investment.

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from observable current market
transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair value.
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(a)

REA -

iR 5K Bl B
SEREBEALBIIVATRS !

BEERRER
— B (M)
— P BRI E

&t

— =T
— R (BT3E)
— bEimiE ()

HERH

et

— BB

HEMX BERRE

L
REHEEHEEHRA
——m¥f

B3 -

AEEENFTRAEERKIT L LABEAL

25 ¢

BERFRABRZRGN_F

REX I A

—R"E-—R-HE=%

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

(a)

During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

Purchase of goods and materials
— Meixin (Note)
— Aroma Coffee
—Yi Pin Xuan
— Wujiang Shangpu
— Tongcan (Note)
— Shanghai HongDa (Note)

Sales of materials
—Yi Pin Xuan
—Tong Can (Note)

Sales of property, plant and equipment

—VYi Pin Xuan

Rental income from operating leases
—Yi Pin Xuan

Note:

—RNENAZRET  RESBEN-Z—REFXA
ZATBARAAEERZAEAL  MELEBREL

RIR-B—AFAAZAE-T—
=+—BET REARR=2—

RAREZBEAL -

NE+ZA
/\i/\ﬁfaﬁ

— A —A
2016 2015
AR®FRE  ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000
5,544 14,850
1,613 1,126
101,179 112,500
6,999 12,826
1,045 5,592
2,817 =
119,197 146,894
5,799 5,056

83 78

5,882 5,134

9 142

1,080 1,080

The transaction with Meixin and Tongcan was from
1 January 2016 to 3 June 2016, since they ceased
to be related parties of the Group on 3 June 2016,
and the transaction with Shanghai HongDa was
from 3 June 2016 to 31 December 2016, since it
became a related party of the Group on 3 June
2016.

The Group entered into the above related party

transactions upon the prices agreed with the

counterparties.
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HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

(b) FEEEAEMS (b) Key management compensation
RABEFRAEEAEMEEERABRFA The remuneration of directors of the Company
ZHMT ¢ and other members of key management of the

Group during the year was as follows:

=EB-RF —FTRF

2016 2015

AR%T R ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EXFe R REF Basic salaries, allowances and benefits 3,356 3,386
EIEREF Post-employment benefit 130 129
VARSAD BB f 2 1~ 3R Share-based payments 53 127
3,539 3,642

FEERABHFMEEREAERIKRTIHBE The remuneration of key management is
BEETE o determined having regard to the performance

of individuals and market trends.

RIRERR - AEENBRRZFBEHIAT - Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

EMRL, BRTRBZRE/ REBEERE
WEARERE DRk Y 3=k HEMER R+=A=t+-H TEEB
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable equity
incorporation/ paid share capital/  interest of the Group
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital At 31 December Principal activity
ZB-X"F —T-h%F
2016 2015
Christine BVI* KBRS BRA1ZETT 100% 100% ®EZER
(V*Elﬁtﬁ%ﬁ
—TEN\F=A+—H
Christine BVI* British Virgin Islands (“BVI") Share capital US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

11 March 2008

REAREEBRAF B 21,0015 7T 100% 100% REHER
“TENF-A++R
Deluxe International Holdings Hong Kong Share capital 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited 17 January 2008 HK$1,001
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NFE+ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

WEARERE

Name of subsidiary

LERAHT

Shanghai Christine

bEETE

Shanghai Ji Yuan De

HERFMRTHE
EfRRARAT

Shanghai Sweet Art Foodstuff
Co., Ltd.

BRRAST

Nanjing Christine

TBSIES

Shanghai Shuang Hong Bakery

TN

Hangzhou Danbi

LT

Shanghai Keli Foodstuff Co., Ltd.

HEMmARYL
Rt R B
Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

RESNEBEE
(MhEEEarsx)
—WA=5—-HAThB

PRC as a wholly-owned
foreign investment enterprise
("WOFE")

19 January 1993

RRIAERE
—N=F+—HANR
PRC as a domestic enterprise
8 November 1993

FEINERE
—TERERARAE

PRC as a domestic enterprise
6 June 2006

REIHINEE

i Sk R AN=

PRC as a sino foreign equity
joint venture enterprise

18 July 2002

TR EBELE
—AANE=R+NR
PRC as a WOFE

18 March 1998

PEARERE
—AANFRATNA
PRC as a domestic enterprise
19 May 1998

FEINERE
—T-TE=A=H

PRC as a domestic enterprise
3 March 2010

BORBERE
HEMER
Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

AR
12,970,000%7C

Registered capital
US$12,970,000

AfMERARE
107,271,2167TC

Registered capital
RMB107,271,216

AMERARE
5,000,0007T
Registered capital

RMB5,000,000

&R
54,800,000% 7T

Registered capital
US$54,800,000

AMERARE
30,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000

&R
1,406,000 7T

Registered capital
US$1,406,000

AMER
AKH#100,0007T

Registered capital
RMB100,000

2016
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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REBEERE
W+=BA=t+—H
Attributable equity
interest of the Group
At 31 December

—-R"E =ZF

—HE
2015

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TEEH

Principal activity

AERHEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

FERHEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

AEREEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

EERHEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

AERHEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

EERHERBER

Producing and selling
bakery products

HEREEm

Selling bakery products
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T, RITRBRRA REBEERE

e NCiE=e R R R A HEMER W+=HA=t-H TEXK
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable equity
incorporation/ paid share capital/  interest of the Group

establishment At 31 December

Name of subsidiary

EERESER AT

Jinda International Trade Co. Ltd.

MNRFHTRAER R

Hangzhou Christine Foodstuff

Co., Ltd

Ningbo Christine Foodstuff Co.,

Ltd
HRRARTERER
BRAT
Nanjing Christine Catering
Management Co., Ltd

LETHRERERER R

Digiu Coffee Catering
Management Co., Ltd

* HARFREERE

B
—ET=F+—H@EA
Hong Kong

4 November 2003

FENNEEERE
=#+—A++tH
PRC as a WOFE

17 November 2003

—FEE =
—==

FENEEERE
E—E=A+NH

PRC as a WOFE

19 March 2014

¢I%ﬁ%§ ¥
—hE+AZTH

PRC as a WOFE

20 October 2015

¢I%ﬁ%§ ¥
—AFNA=++tH

PRC as a WOFE

27 August 2015

BEMN B R RN FARFERD BITEAERES

registered capital

f27%100,0007% T

Share capital
HK$100,000

&R
20,000,000 7T

Registered capital
US$20,000,000

AMERARE
25,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB25,000,000

AMERARE
5,000,0007T
Registered capital

RMB5,000,000

A& RARE
2,000,0007T
Registered capital

RMB2,000,000

—-R"E =ZF
2016

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

—HE
2015

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Directly held by the Company

Principal activity

REER

Investment holding

EERHERBER

Producing and selling
bakery products

FERHEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

EEREEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

HERHERLE
FE o S
Producing and selling
bakery products and
coffee

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during the year or at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bz

FRBEE
iSEIIE NG 5

RBEE
RITHSBEIRE

RBRE
ANLEES
HitREBIE

RBEEFHE
BEERDER
BAXRfEE

B
&t

ARRHER NEHEER

—ZT—R"HF+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E—RE
+=B=+—H
31/12/2016
AR¥T T
RMB’000
Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries 185,516
Current assets
Bank balances and cash 61,839
Current liabilities
Dividend payable 4,708
Other current liabilities 829
5,537
Net current assets 56,302
Total assets less current liabilities 241,818
Capital and reserves
Share capital 8
Reserve 241,810
Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company 241,818
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—E-RE
t=—HA=+—H
31/12/2015
ARBETT
RMB’000

185,450

60,692

4,708
829

5,537

55,155

240,605

240,597

240,605
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T—"F+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

R Movement in reserve:
KA RER
;&N E st
Share

premium and
Share accumulated

capital results Total
AR¥TR AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE—RF—HA—HZ#&#  Balance at 1 January 2015 8 240,220 240,228
iﬁﬂmﬂ&%ﬁﬁﬂimgﬁ Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - 377 377
R-ZZE—RF+=A Balance at 31 December 2015
=+—HZ&ER 8 240,597 240,605
R-ZE—R"F—A—HZ##%  Balance at 1 January 2016 8 240,597 240,605
FREMNREHAFZ B Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - 1,213 1,213
R-ZE—X"F+-A Balance at 31 December 2016
=+t—Bz&# 8 241,810 241,818
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

E4E Results

Weas Revenue

B A5 s ) (E18) Profit (loss) before taxation

Frisfif sz Income tax expense

FREA(ER) & Profit (loss) and total
ZHEIRA(EBE) @58 comprehensive income

(loss) for the year

ATALRELL : Attributable to:
PANCIEZ DN Owners of the Company
EERERE Assets and liabilities
BB E Total assets

BeE Total liabilities

NATEA AEEREZS  Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

—EF——F
2012
AREFT
RMB’000

1,388,032
29,525
(9,440)

20,085

20,085

—ET——F
2012
ARBFIT
RMB*000

2,048,320

904,070

1,144,250

1,144,250

BEt+t-A=1+t—-BLFE

Year ended 31 December

—T—RE
2015
ARBTT
RMB’000

1,061,750
(146,051)
(2,300)

(148,351)

(148,351)

—ZT—ARF
2015
ARETTT
RMB'000

1,435,797
655,351

780,446

—T—=F Z=—NF
2013 2014
ARBTT AR%TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,379,767 1,253,110
(21,605) (135,960)
(15,810) (14,825)
(37,415) (150,785)
(37,415) (150,785)
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—T=F ZETmF
2013 2014
AREBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,853,005 1,538,138
776,258 610,277
1,076,747 927,861
1,076,747 927,861
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780,446

=i
2016
AR®TR
RMB’000

925,705
(118,799)
(2,411)

(121,210)

(121,210)

S
2016

AR®TR
RMB’000

1,310,145

650,573

659,572

659,572
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